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INDEFEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Opinlan

We have audited the consolidated financial staterments of Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(the “Company™) and its subsidiary {coliectively raferred Lo as the "Group™), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 Decernber 2023, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statemenl of changes in shareholders' equity
and consolidated statement of cash fiows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financlal statements, which include material accounting poticy intormation.

In our opindon, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows Tor the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi
Crganizatlon for Chartered and Professional Accountants.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our auwdil in accordance with International Standarde on Auditing that are
endersed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Group In accordance with the Internaticnal
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {including International Independence Standards)
that is endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that is relevant to our audit of the consolidated
linancial statements, and we have lulfilled our other ethical responsibllities n accordance wikth
that Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter are those matler that, in our professional judgment, were of most signilicance
in our sudit of the consofidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of cur audit of the consolidated financlal statemants as a whole, and in
forming auditor's opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
For each matter below, cur description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibliities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consalidated financial statements section of our report, Including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond ta
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit apinian.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Morabaha Marina Financing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company} (continuad)

“Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for expected credit / Impairment
lnsses

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's Islamic
financing recsivable amounted fo SR 1,128
million (2022: 5R 1,035 million), against which
an Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") amounting SR
38.5 million (2022: SR 52,8 million) was
main bained.

We considered this as a key audit matier, as the
determination of ECL involves  significant
estimation and management judgement and this
has a material impact on the consaolidated
financial staterments of the Group, The key areas
of judgement Include:

1. Categorisation of Ilslamic  financing
receivables into Stages 1, 2 and 3 based on the
identification of:

fay exposures with a significant increase
in origination; and

(b} individually  Impaired  f defaulted
EXDOSUIES,

In accordance with the reguirements of IFRS 9
Fimancial Inskruments, the Group measures ECL
based on the credit Iosses expected to arise over
the next fwelve months (' 12-manth ECL', unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination or default, in which case, the
dllowance is based on the ECL expected to arise
over the life af the islamic financing receivables
('Lifetime ECLY. The Group has applied
additional jusggements to identify and estimate
the likelihood of borrowers that may have
experienced Significant increase in credit risk
= o

2. Assumplicns used in (he ECL model for
determining probability of default ("PD"). loss
given default ("LGD") and exposure at default
C'EAD"Y inchuding, bul not limited Lo assessment

forward looking assumptions, macreecanamic
factors and the associated scenarios and
expecled prabability weightages.

of financial condition of counterparty, expected |
future cash flows, developing and incorporating |

We obiained and updated  our
understanding of management’s
assessment of ECL allowance in respect of
Islamic financing receivables including ihe
relevant  accounting  policy,  model
methodology including any key changes
made during the year.

We compared the Group's accounting
pallcy and methodalagy for ECL allowance
with the requirements of IFRS 9.

We  assessed the  design and
implementation, and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key confrols (including
relevant Information  Technology i7"
general and application controls) over:

4. he ECL model, including governance
aver the model, its validation during the
vear, and any model updates performed
during the year, including key inpuls,
assumptions and management
awerlays, il anyl;

B. Ihe classification of klamic financing
receivable into Stages 1, 2 and 3 and
timely eptification of SICR and the
determination af default f individually
impaired éxposures.

C. the 1T systems and applications
underpinning the ECL model; and

d. the integrity of data inputs into the ECL
rodal,

Far a sample of customers, we assessed;

a, the appropriateness of staging as
identifizd by management; and

b, management’s computations for ECL;
and

c. for selected Islamic  financing
receivables, we Assessed
managemant's assessment of

recoverable cash flows, including the
impact af collateral.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Morabaha Marina Financing Company

(A Saud| Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Key audit matter

{ How our audit addressed the Key audit
| matter

losses (continued)

3, The need to apply management cverlays using
expert credit judgement to reffect all relevant
risk factors, that might not hiave been caplured
by the ECL models,

Application of these judgements and estimates,
continues to result in greater estimatien
uncertainty and the associated audit risk around
ECL calculations as at 31 December 2023,

Refer to the summary of material accouwnting
podicy note 3.3 for the impairment of financial
assotsy nole 4 which confains the discloswro of
critical sccounting judgments, estimates and
assumptions refating to impairment losses of
financial assels and the impairment assessment
methodology used by the Grouwp and nofe 29
which conlfains the disclosure of impairment
against fslamic financing receivables; credif
quallty analysis and key asswnpfions and factors
considered in determination of ECL,

Allowance for &npecte:ﬁ' credit / impairment @ =

We assessed the appropriateness of the
Group's criteria for the determination
of SICR and dentification of “default”
or “individually impaired” exposures,
and their classification Into  stages.
Furthermore, for a sample of
BALOSUTES, we assesspd the
appropriateness of impalred"”
gxposures; and their classification of
the  Group's  Islamic  finanging
receivables portfolio,

We assessed the reasonableness ol the
underlying assumptions used by the
Group in the ECL model including
forward looking assumptions keeging in
vigw Lhe uncertainty and velatility in
SLOrdHnic sCenarios.,

We tested the completeness and
accuracy of data underpinning the ECL
calculations as at21 December 2023,

Where requirgd, we  involved our
specialisis to. assisl us In reviewing
maodel calculations, evaluating
interrelated  inputs  and  assessing
reasanableness of assumptions used In
the ECL model, particularly around
macrosconomic  variables, farecasted
MACT e COnamic SCERArios and
probability weights and of assumptions
used in management overlays,

We  asssessed  the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolildated financial
statements.




EY

Sy s

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudl Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Other Information included in The Group’s 2023 Annual Report

Cther information consists of the information included in the Group's 2023 annual report, ather
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information in its annual report, The Group's 2023 annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our aginion on the consolidated financial statements does nel cover the ather infarmation and
we will not express any form ol assurance conclusion thareon.

In- conrection with our audit of the consolidabed financial statements, aur responsibility s ta
read the aother information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing 5o, consider
whether the ofher information s materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowkedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Grogp's 2023 annual report, I we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matler to those charged with
QOVErNance,

Responsibllities of the Management and Those Charged with Gavernance fer the Censolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements In accardance with International Financlal Reporting Standards that are
endorsed in the Kingdom of Sawdi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are
endorsed by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants and Lhe
provisions of Companies' Law and Company's By-laws, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible far assessing
Lhe Group's ability to continwe as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors
gither infends fo llguidate Lhe Group or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
ba da sg,

Thaose charged with governance, the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process,
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (continuad)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consalidated linancial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is nob a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Stancards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a
material misstaternent when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the aconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal
skepdicism throughout the audit, We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
frem frawd is higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an undesrstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal contral.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exlsts related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Group's ahility
to continue as 4 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the relaled disclosures in the
consclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our
apinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group lo cease to
conlinue as 3 going concern.

« Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, Including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Morabaha Marina Financing Company
A Saudl Joint Stock Company) (continueds

Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
* Oblain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infermation of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statemnants. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and perfarmance of

the Group awdit, We remain solely respansibie for our audit opinion,

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scape and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
defliciencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit,

¥We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions 1aken to eliminate threats or safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consclidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these malters in our
auditer's report uniess law or regulation precludes public disciosure about the matter or when,
In extremely rare circumstances, we delenmine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of daing 50 would reasonably be expected to
outwelgh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2023

S22 2022
Noses LY 5R

Special commiasion income 5 169,417,166 |58, 114,983
Special commission expense (46,349 5200 (29412500}
NET SFECIAL COMMISSION INCOME 123,067 646 28,707,483
Oiher operaiing income
Crher income, ne & 10,715,471 1% 885, 514
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 133,783,117 148,551,007
Operaiing expeases
Gieneral and adm inistrution expenscs 7 (97,227870)  (066,894,1%1)
Impairment kosses on Istamic financing receivables, not 12 (3,537,010 1) (266943213
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (1040, T4 888 (05 588.512)
Income from short<term depouns b 6,860,784 | A%1.375
INCOME BEFORE FAKAT 39 879020 a, 454 RGO
Zakat 24 (8,910933)  (9,514,217)
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 30,968 087 24 980,627
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income mot te be reclassified to the profis and foss
i suhsequent peviody
Actuarial giin on remeasurement of emplovess' defined benefit lisbilites 20 179,488 1,331,643
TOTAL COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME 31,147,575 46,312,270
Adttributabbe 12
Equity holders of the parent 36, E27.004 48,352 504
Mon-controlling interest (5680339 (2.040,320)

ML 147575 46,312,270
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Eamnings per share from net income atiributable to equity holders
of the Parent 23 160 1.07

()

Executive Mannging Director

Cel Fimancial Officer

Jhe accampanying nates 1 10 35 form part of these consaliduted financial sarements

T



Morabaha Marina Financing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As a1 31 December 2023

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis
Restriceed cash deposi

Fair walue of derivarjves
Iskaimic Mnancing receivables
Repossessed asset held for sale

Imwestment &t fair value throwugh ofher comprehensive

income (OCT)
Prepayments and other assets
Right of usc assets
Intangible assets

Property and eguipment
TOTAL ASSETSH

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable, sccruals and athers
Proocisian foe #akas

Barrowinga

Lease linbilities

Empioyees’ defined benefit liahilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital
Share preminm
Stobutory reserve
Treasury akares
Retained E'.H'llingz.

Equity auributable 10 equity holders of the Parent
HNon-controlling interest

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

()

Executive Managing Director

The sccempenying notes | to 35 form purt of these consolidated financial statements

213 22
Matgs 5R S
g 01,937,978 9,639,011
Eb) 1 O, f 6,00 1030
19 1,842,693 5,500 462
12 089,345,610 81,883,082
11 45,980,281 53,629,422
10 §92.850 892,850
9 22,063,767 36,571,091
14 18,199,496 7,225 463
5 44,060,507 45,379,200
13 7242436 7,066,652
1L M2,585618 1,223 787,203
17 23,588,023 16,887,040
24 S,442,940 9,639,804
19 3541847 615724994
16 17,523,342 6,649,315
20 6.256,561 5,390,716
500352813 654297769
2] TI4,285,720 500000000
21 64,314,817 X
22 15,747,950 22,085,321
21 (16062300) [ 16,062,300)
45,930,492 52,769,978
B37,216,709 558,792,000
i) 5,016,006 10,656,435
842,232,505 569,489,434
1L MLSB5.618 1,223, 787,203
-
Chainngn o
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Morabaha Marina Financing Company
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

OPFERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before zakat

Adjuzments for:

Impairient losaes on [slumic financing receivables
Drepreciation on property and equipment
Amoartisntion of mtangible assets
Deprecintion on right of use ssets
Finnnce charpe on lease

Provision for employess’ terminal benefits
Fair volue of derivative

Finance cost

Finamee income

Clperating cosh fows before working copital change:s
Working capital adjusiments:

Islamic finaneing receivables

Prepayments amd oifier &ssets

Restricted cash deposits

Accounts payahle, accruals and others

Mel cash used in operations
Employees” terminal beoefits paid
Fakat paid

Fuance cost pald

Bet cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions 1o property and eguipmient

Additions 1o mtangible assets

Acguisition of n subsidiary - consideration paid
Finance income recerved

Mat cash used in investing activibies

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bormowings

Repayment of barrowings

Payment of principal porthon of lease Tmbilities
Proceeds from increase of capital, net of treasury shares
Proceeds from issue of share capital through 1O
Crividends paid

teet cash from financing activities

%,

Nuies

12
i3
15
I
1]

b

2
4

k]
I3
14

25

Executive Managing Director

223 J022
SR iR
39,879,020 54,404, 860
25,305,437 46,449 918
1,760,344 2,081,192
4,956,345 2,107,469
4,237,663 2,778,283
1,237,506 552 A6l
1396400 2627800
1,687,709 {5,500 452)
45,112,004 17,301,544
i6.BE0, TEE) {1,4%91,3575]
E20LE10.715 121,407 2590
{ 1296405, 386) {113, 868,260%
(17,258,041} (24,293 053]
. (16,000,000
54 848 (13,197,358}
(17.977,824) (45,951,383)
(B8 145} {1 36,6T1)
(5,103,797} (6,878,541)
(45, 435.515) (14,390,635}
(T2 8TO2EL) (67,357.631)
12,945,118} (1,638,127)
(7,687,652) (6,684, 475)
= (7,100,000}
6,031,575 | 491,375
(4,6401,205) (13.931,227)
153,741,721 316062, 300
(325.924,842) (349,620,052}
(3 A08 D06) (3,E1B,159)
= IH-SH]:I"S:}
512,557,151 -
(37,004,741}
09,770,453 i07,184.830
Chairm of

The accompanying nofes | to 35 form part of these consolidated francial sistements

]



Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the year
Acqaisition of a subsidiary « cash acquired

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Addition of right of use assets and lease liabilities
Transfer of represessed ascers hebd for sale
zmannce of share capital

S ()

Moe

I6
1

21

2023
SR

21.208,967
ER6390H 1

91,937 9T

1521169
3257 6K

ancial Dfficer " Executive Managing Director

Kl

Mz
R

25895981

42,807,690
935,340

69,639,011

|.B6S, 908
25,411,296
28,021,950

-----



Morabaha Marina Financing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company ) -
NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 December 2023

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Marabaha Marina Financing Company (the “Compony ™ oe tse “Pasent™) is a Saudi Joind Siek Company eeglstered in
Riyadh, Kiggdem of Saudi Arabia under sommercial registraton nombesed 1000537706 dasd 14 Jensmla A0-Thani
14%31 [Comeapoiding 10 5 May 200 2L The Compor’s head oifice is locsied of Rivodh and repisterad nddress is PO
[Box BOSS, Rivadh 14925, Kingdom of Sl Ardbia. Ar Ralbd Gerice, Thomanal road.

he Compariv hag the following branches:

Braxeh Comanercial

Repivtrasion Nomber Brameh facmion e

RERI TR Arar ¥ Jumacn 11 143TH

J O 03T T F‘.i}'.‘dh Main 14 Jampda 1 1433H
v 185 s Rivaxlh 16 [HhulUpselah 1433 H
IR iyl 2 Dl adah 1439H
11 a0 EOESy | Ksiasdini 1% Jumiodss L L436H
20012370 armmiam £ Rumdmn 1440H
253112249 [N FTHTE 2 il daukah 14349H
MO0 F9ET? SLlika 14 Sahrvwal 1417H
MEMI07T] iy vl 27 Sha'aban 1438H
M MIZREIT Medcdah B Fumadp I8 143710
CLEEETRAEL Jeddnh 2 Dihnl-pidsh 14349H
SESOAD 133 Abha 4 Shn nhan 14350
SO0 Jizan # Jumnacdn 11 14371
13130744972 |-]urr|_:. alaly & Muahaswm 14000H
ERE T Hail £ Muhamram 144001
FOSZEAAD Hajran 23 Muharram [4HH{
AESSIAUEAT Khaenis maushai 27 Sha'ahan 1442H
ADFTERA4410 Tail 27 Sha'aban 1<HXH

The '-'.:I.!Il11]:ll1ll_"- ig -:I'I.E:l,l.'.:l.l in Friiace lease, I'lnunciug fucildées fis meduem and small enkerprises amd comsumer Enance
In accordanes with The Soudfi Central Bank (“SAMA” ) approval nomber 22200410 dased 19 Bhul Qadah 1435H
fomresponding io [3 Seplember 2004).

O August X9 ke sharcholiers of the Compony decided 1o go for an [nitial Public Cifering (IPC). On 26
Degember 2022, jhe Copital Markst Authority's (CMA] Board has issued s neselstion approving tie Company s
wrﬂicxi-'.lrt fir the TI:F'iHI'EIHII aid olTering of T A8 57E shares representing 30% of Camppme”s share capital pos
listing in Saadi Stock Exchange (Tadaswul),

On | May 2023, the Company snesnced #s mbention o proceed wilh the initisl pehlic offering und listing of it
ordinuny shures by way of isidance of 21,478,572 pow slare,

Cm 1 My 2023, the Company announced commeneement of retail subseription period rom 28 Moy 2023 0 29 May
KI5 anil instituticnnd investorg sabseription period faom 14 bay 2023 10 18 May 2023 gl oo oiler poce ol 51 146 por
shnre, Adloimesit of shares o new sharehalders completed on 5 June 2025 and the Company's ordinary shares tirding
s conrtsences! in Saudi Sock Exchange (Todawl) on 21 Juse 2023 {aleo redee s nate 21 ),

Stenrefiniier Prr-E i Pt Mfering
Moof o Thiwersiie Mool Mo Chameiship Moniiral
slimes e Verlue (5K} ey 4 Fadliee (3R
Faunding sharchalders 50,60, (K0 100G S0, 000, X0 SO0, LK T SO D)
Mublic - - - 21428572 i 2R4285.TM)
30, 00, K0 1Rs S0, DL XD T 428 372 [ E Y TH42E5,7 M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
31 December 2023

| CORMMEATE INFORMATION (somtiued)

Thes: consolilaied Gnancial gatements inelhede the finoneinl seatements of the Cempany aod the Mnoncial staements
of Ehgital Payments Compony for Fiesncial Technology. & 80% swisd subsidiory {31 December 2022: BU945)
icolieetively with the Company relerred 1o o the *Cioap™ ), Digital Paymerts Company or Cinangiol Technology is o
limiied labitiey company registered in thee Kingdom of Saodi Arabis nder Commesciol Registrabon Mo, 1010049608
tsssed an 28 Sha"hon 14X (comespondmg o 14 bay 2008 The company is ergaged in bailifing the technology of
Py Nt gétaway dapgregation madel), copable of sotisfving the rapédly growing electronle commeros payments
i Bayund and providing elevironic wallet services (Bayan wabledh bn the Kingdom of Saadi A rahin.,

F] BASIS OF PREPARATION

u) Liatemient of com plinnce

The carslicdated Mnamiial siatemenis of the Croup have been prepared in acconfance with Intematicnal Finreial
Keporiing Starsdards (| FRS} chat a0e endorsed in the Kingdom of Smedi Arabia and sther standards and prosouneements
Ehat i enidiesed by the Saadi Crganization For Chorerad misd Profesionasl Aceountants (S00CPA L

b} Basis of measurement gnd prosentation

The Group has prepared the consolidited fimmncinl statemenis o0 the basis that it will continue 10 operale s o going
cofteerts wndes e historical cost comveniion, except for enxployec beaclies’ Babilities, where actunral presem value
calculnfivns ore wsed,

Thi Oroup presénts #s staement of Mnanclal positt o in ceder of tiguedity based on the Crowp”s intention and perceiyved
ability 1o recoverseile the magoriy of sseisbiabilities of the corresponding financial scoement ling item. An analysis
regarding mecovery or satlement within 12 monihe affer the soposiing date [ curnenty and mon: than 12 monihs aber ihe
reparting dabe |non-carrent) s presesicd monse ML

£l Fumctional and presentation currency
These comsdidimed Tinancial stuements ave heen presgned in Seudi Bivals (SR unless atherwise sted, which 15
ks the Cirgup’s fimetional cemency

iy Gakng concern
I manking the going copesrn asscssment, the Croup bas considered o wide mnge of informativn including presem ancd
Fudure projections of profiabdlity, cesh Nows ord svailabilite of sther copital eesources sie.

El Bask of comsalidation

The consoliduted financisl sotements comprise the fnancial stalements of the Company and its subskliary. The
Firsneial statensenis of the subzdiary are prepared for the same reporting veor os that of the Company, using conslsien
accuinting policics,

The Compary corsolidates a sabsidiary when it contrals il Conirol is achieved when the Company is exposed, or bas
rights, o varibie retimes from i invobenment with die iovesiee and Bas the shility to alfect thise seiums through ils
per over fhe inyesiee

Ceenerally, there i o presunption that @ majorite of woting ripghls realis in eontrol, Hewewar, in individual
csfcumstiaces, the Group may siill exercise control with o s than 508 sharchalding, or moy mob be able o exercise
contral even wilh ewnership over 3% ol an entity s shores, When asessing wheiber i has prwer over am investes and
therefire controls the vasinbility of #s returms, the Company considers all relevant facts and clreumstances, including:

= The purpose and desgn ol the mvesies

= The vekevant sctivities and how decisions about those activities are made and whelber the Company can diret
thinse eiivilies

= Uontrachsal arrangemends such as ool rights pur ghis and Bgusdation rights

Wheihwr the Company i exposed, or has rights, 10 variable retisns fron i0s involvement with the mvestes, arsd has 1he
power to affect the variability of such returns.




Maorahaha Marina Financing Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
31 December 2023

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (cantinued)

c) Basls of consolidation jcontinmed)

The conselicated financial staements comprise the fnancial smements of e Company and s subsidiany, The
linanvial mniements of il subsidiary are prepored For the smme reporting vear as that of the Compoy, asing consisient
suiEling policies

The Corapany eensolidstes o subsidiary when it controls o, Cantrol s achieved when the Company is exposed, or has
rights, e variable redums from ies involvement wiil the levesice and las the abilit e affect these reluns through 13
power pnder the investee.

tronernlly, there is a presumnpin Nemt a maponty af vioimg rghts results in comiml, However, im0 inlividual
CireapEtaees, e Ciraug may still exercise condrol with o kess than 30% sharcholding. or may ot be able to exercise
eoniral even with ownership over 30%% of an ety s shares, When asseising whether o has power over an invesiee s
therefire controls the variability of 85 rewims, the Compony eonsiders oll relevant focs aml circumsionees, including:

*  The purpass nisd desipn of he svebes

= The relevant activities and how degisions shout 1hase aerivithes ane made and wisciber the Company can direct
thwse activities

*  Coniractudl anangements such ascull rights, pal rights ond likeidoton rigles

Whether the Company 5 exposed, or ls rights, i ovarinble retms froan s isvolvesent with the investes, and has the
prswer to allizet the variability of such resums.

Frofit or kss and cach component o ©0C1 are antibueed o the equity bokders of the Parent and 1o the nap-commolling
inberest | MECTY even if this sesulis in the NCT having & deficit balonce.

When Recessiary, adjusmaens are mode othe financlal stxtements of subsldiany 1o bong their sccomnting policies in
Finee with ik Giroup's accounting pabicies:. AL inirosgroup assets, linhilitkes, equity, income, expenses and cash fews
relativg 1o renssclions between members of the Group are chimlsated b full on eomsolidation.

A chonge in the cwnership inwnestof o subsidiory, withau loss of controd, is accounsed For 45 ain equily ranszction, [F
the Cirip loses conbrol over o subsidiary, it derccognises the nolited asses Ginchaling geadwilll, lahilies, MO mnd
ather COmpanenis ol cajilliy. while anyy resultaid gain or o is recognised in pm-TlI or lss

Ay investmient retnined is recogitized ag famr value al the dige of loss of controd,
X SHMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

xi Mew amd amended stadndards and interpretaiins

The Group applied Gor the Ae-tiome connin standards and pmendments, swhich are effective for anmual pericds
begmning varar afler 1 Jopuary 2023 (unbess atherwise stasedh. The Group bes oot cady adopged ary olber siankard,
mberprecaiion or amcdinent that has been Bsued bal is nol ved effective,

International Tax Referm—Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments in 145 §2
The amembments e LAS 12 have been introceced in response o the OECT s BEFS Pillar Twoe males and include:

= A mandaiory wenporary exception e the recognition wad disclasure of deferred tnxes ansing from the jurisdictional
trn prleineitaliog af the Pillar Two model miles; and

e [hsclosune reguiremenis for affecied entities o help users of i Anancial soatements beter aisderstand an ety s
exprsiere b Mlar Two ineome Gses asing Grons lal legislation. paricubarly before its efective dole.

In periads in which Pellsr Two legislation is {aelbsastively ) enscted bul not val ellective. tho amendmos nogunes
dizclosire of kinwn or remionahly estimable infonmation that helps users of fimoneinl sutements ondersiand the entity's
expizure arising from Fillor Twa oeeme wxes including both qualiagive asd quantictlve mfenmases about big
X pEire i Fillar Two ivoome toxes al the end ol the repinting period, FFor expmple:




Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS {Contimued)
}i December 2023

i SUMMARY OF MATERTAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinmed )
A Mew wnd nmended standnrds and nberpretations feoniuaed)
Internationsl Tax Heform—TPillor Twe Model Bules — Anendments to 145 12 {continsed)

e ualicativee infenmation such & how an entity is sfzeied by Fillor Twio legislaton and the main jurisdicions in
which exposures 1w Pillar T ingonse tases meghd exist, and
by amitative information sisch as:

= An idication of the propeion of um entite's profis that might be sshject o Pillar Twas inceme tases amd the
wrerage effective o e applicolile v those prafits or

» A indicution of bow e entin”s oventll effective tox raie woild bove changed if Pillar Two legislation s been
eflective.

Cince the legislation is effective. additions! disclosures are required for the cument tax expeise related to Pillar Two
ingonme lnxes, The requirements apply fod annual reparting periods beginming on or afier | Janeary 2023, boi pat for
ary ingerim persods cndiing on or befone 31 Pecember 2023

Ihe Group has reviewed s corporate structiare in Light of the inroduction of Pillar Twe Model Rales s the various
urisdictisns in which il operses and comebuded that the amendments will ave oo imgact on te Group’s conselidiied
Cinancal statements ot 31 December 2023,

Dischosure of Acesunting Polickes - Amienilments to IAS | ond IFRS Practice Ststoment 2

The wmendmenis w 1AS | and [FRS Proctice Statement 2 Making Materialite Judgements provide giidsnce: nml
examiples 1o belp entities apply materiality judgermenms W accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help
entities provide agcounting pollcy disclosures that ane moee uselful by replacing the reguirement for civtities o d kekse
their “significant™ seceunting pelicies with g requirement to dlselose their “inateral” deounling poticies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of maseriality in making decisions aboul sccomnting policy disclosires.

Ihee amerslmenis has no impact an the Giap's disclosunes of sccounting policies, messurement, recognition ar
presemtation af ary items I s Growp's Anancinl stalements,

TFRE 17— fusmwrance comiracts

IFRS 1Y Brsissmics Conlrocis [IFRS17) is effective for L".'puﬂing, perivids beginning onoor alfler | Jamsry 2023, IFRS
|7 applics 10 all types of msurance contracts (ie., Tifi, nonslife, direct instirance and resinsumnce). repardiess of the
tvpe o enfitbes Ut Bssue them, as wellas o certain gusrmiess and inancil insnarienss with dissetionery particl pation
Features. Lantited seope axcepitons apply.

The: Groug has mol identilied contragls that oesull in the ransfer of significans msurance risk, and therefore il hes
canclided tha IFRS 17 docs nat have & mepact on fhe conselidoted fooncial stasements for the yvear ended 31 Deconber
2023,

Dieferred Tas relited tu Asseds and Liabilities prising from s Single Transaction - Amendments to 1AS 12

I May 2021, the Bonrd issped amendments w 1AS 12, which nomow the scape of the initial recopnition exception
wnder IAS |2, w0 dhat it oo longer applies @ imnmcfions that givie rise o sgqusd tisable and dedctible wemporiry
ilifferenoe:

The amsendinents showld be applisd o ranssctions that oceur on o alfer the beginning of the earfiest comparitive period
presented. b pddition, o the beginning of the eardicst compasative perssd peeseised, o delered s asset (proyided dhat
sulTickent taxable profi i available) pnd g defered s labilay shoold alse be recogrizead fior all deductible and mxahle
temparary differences pssociaed with leases and decammissioning ohligatinns

e aisencments has o impaect o the CGiroup's conselidabed lnancial siatemenis
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3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}

&2 Accowniing standards issued bul nat vei effective

Thee pew andd amenided standands and interpretations tha &ne igused, bal nol yet effective, ap W e dote of issmmee of
the Girvap's consolidated financial statements are discliesed below. The Group inleids 10 adopt these new and smended
starmbards and imerpreintions, @ applicable, when they becoime efferrive

Amcadments o IFRS 16: Lense Linbility in & Sale and Leasebach
Iy Seplember 2022, tie TASE issued amendmends to IFRS 16 10 spedily the requirements that  selerdessee gaes n
michsriog e lease linbiliy arising ina e and lepehack fmnsietion, to ensong the seller-lessee does pol recopnise
iy oot of the gain or loss that relates b fhe gt of wse i rdnins

The amendments are eflective for anonal reparfing periods begliming on o afier | Janmry 2024 ond must opplied
retrospectively (o sale ond leaschack mminsactions entered into afler the date of initinl application af IFRS 1a Earkier
application is pesmitied and that fsc0 must be disclosed,

e amendements are ot expected 10 have o material impoct on the Group's consolidited Gnascial stalements,

Amendments to IAS Iz Classification of Liabilities ns Current or Nog-current
bk Jamuary IO, the [ASH issued amendments 15 paragraplis 69 1o 76 of [AS | 1o specify ihe requirements for
clnssilving Halbilities & curem or neg=curent. The wnesdments clarify

= What i meant By a dght b defer ssftlemen

* Vbl a right o defer must exisc ol the end of the reporfing periisd

= Than clnssification is usdTocted by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its defermib right

* Thet unly If an embedded derivative in & convertible ability is iselF an equity instrument would the tems of a
liability nal impest ils clssificalion,

In additban, & regquitement has been nireducsd 10 require disclosure when a lizhility arisang from a loan agresment is
elassified o nod-ourrent and the entins right w defier scnlement is contingent on compliance with funre covenams
vithin twelve monghs,

The amendiments an: offective for annual feporting periods beginning on or after | Januery 2024 and must be applied
relrspectively. The Group bs cusnaily assessing the impact thie smendments will hoye an curremt practice and whether
exisling an pErecinents may require renegotintion,

Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments o LAS 7 and IFRS 7

I Py 2023, the TASE issued nmendments to [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and [FRS T Financial Instruments:
Drisclosures to clarify the characteristics of supplisr finance srrangemenis and require sdditionn] diselosune of such
arrangenents The discosure requirements In the amendments are intended to assist users of Mincial gatements in
understanding the effecis of supplies finasce arrangemenis on ai entity s linhilities, cosh flows and exposane o liquidicy
risk

The amendmenis will be effective for annual reporting pedods begining on or afier | January 2024, Early adoption is
permitted. bul will need to be dischosed. The amendments are nor expected w0 have a material impsct on the Group's
consilidabed financial statemems,

Lack oF exchangeability — Amendments o 1AS 2]
I Avigost 2023, dhe Board isased Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments 10 14% 21},

The smendment 10 1AS 21 specifies how an entity shoubd assess whether o currency is exchangeable and how it should
determing 2 spol exchinge rofe when exclampeahility i Incking.

A currenoy is considered 1o be exghungeably inte another curneney when am cogity i able o ehiain the other currency
within a time frame that allows fir 2 normsl administrative delay and trough @ mesker or exchange meshanism in
which o exchange ransaction wonkl crente enforoesable rights and ohligntions
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| SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eaitlnued)

AT Accounting standards seed But nal yet effective (continued)

IT & curreicy & ool exchangeable indo another curnency, us entity s required o cstimate e spob exchangs rate at the
imcasurement dole. Am ety 's objective in estinating the spod exchange rge i 6 rellect the mie ol which anongerly
exchnnge irmnsetion would tnke plece 0 ihe mensurensent dote between macked participants wnder provailing sconemic
conditions. The amendremis nobe st an antily can use an ohservable exchange mie without adinsiment or pnother
estimmution 1echmbyguc,

When an entity estimates i spot exchange rle becaiise o currency is ot exchanpeable into nrother curreney , it discloses
infonmation el enables wsers ol #s fnoncial smiements o andersiand Bosy the currency nol being exchongesble into
e other currency affiects, ar i3 expected 1o aftect. ihe entity™s finoncinl performaence, Arancial position and exsh Aows

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or affer | January 2025, Early adoption is
permitted, bur will meel Lo be dischised.

Wher appiving the amckdineids, an ey cannpl restobe comparmbive isformation,
Phe smendmernts are nof eapectod 1o have o maderiol Tnpoct on the Group's consolidoed fnaecinl soemens,

Sale ar Coniribution of Asseis between an Invester e ils Associnie or Joint Yenture - Amendmests o IFRS
10wl 1AS 18

e amesdemens address the conflic! between IFRS 10 Consolidsted Finmmcial Sitements and 1A% 28 [nvestments in
Associnles and Joint Ventires in deabing with the loss of condred of o subsidiary it B sold ar contrdbied o an asseciate
ar joint ventire

Thee amsendnsenes ¢larily that a full gain or loss i= reeognised swhen a transier fo an assoeiabe or joinl venlure invalves a
business as defined in IFRS 3 Business comnbimstions, Any gain oc loss resalting from the sale or condribution of asseis
thas does not constitie a business, however, 15 recopnised only e the extent of unrcksied investors’ nerests in the
gssoglite or joinl vernlure,

The mndnidinents miust be dppled prospectively. Early applicanion i permitted oo maost be disclosed.

The nmendneiis e ingended b eliminate diversity in proctice osd give preporers 4 consisiént set ol principles o apply
Fi st transactions, However, the application of the definilin of o bosiness is judgemental and enfifies need o
corsider e detinition caredully in sich imesactions,

In Devember 2003, the 1ASE decaded 1o delier the effective dase of the pmendments uniil sued time os 8 hos finolised
any amendivents that cesull fram s research praject on the squity metbod, Early application of the amendimems is sl
permitned.

a3 Summary af material accounting polickes
The sipnifieant aceouniing poficier adopsed by the Group in preparatien of thess consolidated Guasclal sntements aie
a5 folkmws:

Flvanctal instraments
{i Flitnrind instrnamendy — Inithod rerognition

Mate of recogiiion

Fisancial issets and linkilities, with the eseeption of 1slasiie fnoneing recevables 16 cusomers and baloicss due 1o
custonmers, are initally recognased on the trade dase, §.e.. te dole omwhich the Group beconses o pany (o e comractual
provisins of the insimment, This ineludes repular way trades, e, purclzses or sabes of Tinancial axsels thal reguine
dedivery of seseis within ibe tme Framse genenidly esinblished by regulatinn or conventian jn the pnrkef place. Islanmic
firemeing receivales lo cusiomers are recogrised whes funds ore ansferred to the custoniers’ oceouints, The Group
recognises balorces dige to custimens wiwn funds ane renslerned o the Grsp.
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i SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued )
A3 Bummary of material acceuniing policies (continued )

Finraehn! fnstrunienty

ifi Firtvmeinl iniraneets — il recogaitin

fevitscal ecrmievieal of fmamwcrod sveieumseins

Thee classifwation af finoncial irstrimess o sl recogn@ion depends o their commeiunl fenms enid the asiness
micclel for nanaging ihe insinemeonts, s deseribed in “Finpncial aspets and liahifities per finaniol satement line” note
belony, Finaneiol instrumends are milialby messined of tieir fair valus, cxceplin ihe case of financial pssels and linancinl
linbdlities recombed 81 FYPL. wransaction costs ore added o, or subiracied from, this amoum, Islamic Anancing
receivabdes are measuncd al e transaction price. When the fiir valoe of fnoncial insmasents at okl recognition
ififfers from the irinsmction prige, the Croup gooownls Tor the Bay | profil or fss, s deseribed below,

hap o prafie o les

When the trangection price of the instrument differs from the fair value s ongination and che fir valis &= bossd ona
waluatioa techague wsing enly inputs ohservable i morket wanssctions. the Group recognises the difference betwgen
e trunsaction price and fair value s special conmmissEon income

Meariireanen cafegrries of finunsa siseds aed Sabiliies
The Group clusifics all of is foanciol ssms basel on e buginess model for mmaghag the ssses and the assecs
contracieal ferns, mensired nl cilher

& Adiwtized cosl

s Fuar valee through ober comprelsengive meonse, FYOC)

#  Fisrvahes threph prefii and fes, FYTEL

Finanesal abilities. afher than lons commitneeiis o mensared of amortised costor ol FYPL when thiev are held for
trading or the @i value designaion i applic,

Pherernrimation af file vielie
Fn-opder se show low fasr valoes bave been derived, fnoncial instuments ore classificd based o0 hiesarchy of vabiation
nechnigues, 2 sumemarizsd helow:

Liwel I linanceal mesraments — T hose whie the aputs used inthe valuntion are enadjested guoied prices fiom aciive
markets for identical assets or liabilities thor the Group has access 1o s (s msonement date. The Giroug
omgklers markels ns active only if there are sufficiont toding activities with negands to the volume and
lgquidity of the ilentical i of lkakiliies and when there ore binding and exercisable price quotes
avollable o the hatoee sheet daie,

Lewel 2 fimancial instruments = Those where the inpats that ore used for valuation and are sigaificant, are derived
fram directly or indirectly observahle makel dta available over the enlire period of the insinansent’s [ife,
Huich inguss include quated prices Tor similor assets o liahilities in astive markets, quoted prices Gor identical
indlrames i inackive markets aisl obaervabls Dipwls other than guised prices such as inseres rates owd
vield curves, Emplled velotilities, and credit spreads, In pddition, adjustiments moy be requirsd for the
condition o locatien of the asse or the extent to which @ rebstes o fenis thal dre comparable w1l valised
mstrument, However, il sucl sdjusiments are hosel on unobservable inputs which are significant o the
eriire incasirement. the Ciroap will classity the insimmenis s Level 3,

Level 5 financial nswrainents = These that melude one or wmorz unobservable ingut that = significant 1o the
ineasuncmenl as whale,

The diroup periodically reviews its valuntion technigues includiise the sdopied methudologies ond msdel calibrations,
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i SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eantinued)
2 Summary ol imaterizl accaunting policies (continued )

Fimuaeial insirpmenty feomelied)

i Fiomaeiol aeseds e Saldilinfes per Sirarcin! sialement (e

Fimarcizl arsery o amavinesg cox
Acfinancinl assel 15 mcasured at amorizesd cost if it meets both of ihe ollowing conditions and is not designated as o
FVTPL:
& the asscl iz beld within o esiness moded whese objective is o bobd asses 1o0-colleet eomtrsctual cash Mows; and
® the comractual fenms of the fnnncial asset give rise o specified dates o cash Bows that ase solely poyiments of
principal and fiteresa (5P the privcipe] amaimi ouisionding

The detnile of these conditions are outlined bl

Hersiowas wovked aisrsanmr
The: Grroup determines s business maodel o the Tevel iha bes refleces haw it manages prowgs of financil asses o
achieve ifs business abjective;
# Tlaz risks that alfect the performance of the Susiness moded (and e Grancial ssees hedd within hat besinss
madely ard, Im pamtbeulss, the way hase risks ore mamngesd,
o How monsgers of the busines are compensied (o example, whether the compensaibon is based onthe Bir value
ol thie assets mannged or om b coniractund cash Nows eodleced )

The expected Trequency, value o fiming of sales one glso nporil daspects of te Croup's sscssamt, This business
mindel asseciment @5 based on resseanbly expected seemmivs willwol Taking worst cise' or Siress cnse’ seenirids inky
peeount, 17 cagh Mows ofter initiol vecognition are realised in o way that & differeid from the Growp ‘s original
axpaclations, the Growp does nesl change the classitfication of the remoming lieancial assets beld in chat bisiness msdis),
hunt incorporaies such infonmation when assessing newly originated or newly purchassd finsocinl assets going forword

SPPT Tiess
As i socomd step of ils classifiention process the Giroup assesses e contractinl wems of the Nnancial ssse o kesiify
whether they meed the 5PPI fest

“Principal” B the purpose of this et B defined as the Gic valioe of the liemcial asseal inilial recopnivion ol may
change sver the 1 ol e Doucial asse (for example, if theére are repayimends of prncipal or smesisation of the
p.rtnﬁl.lln."di:ﬂ:mln!],

I st signaficant elements of interest within o lemding aremgemcid are ypically the congiderution for the time vidus
of money and credin gisk, To make the SPM assesmen, the Croup applies judgement ongd considers relevan fociors
sl as U currency in which the fnancial sssel s denominaed, and e pericd for whieh e interest rabe 15 s

I gonirist, conracival toms thal introduce o more then de minimis expasure w risks or volasiline in the contraciunl
cash flows thot ore wmrelaied won basic lending arrangement do oed give rise 1o conbractual cash fows e ane sedely
paymenis i FlTiI?lE:ipu| fiisd listereat an the amouni cailslamdiniy. In sich cases. the finoncinl dses 15 n.-quin:l.l Lo bz

meesured s FVPL.

Ly Srastrremieris ad VO
A slebl instrument i measred ab FYOCT enly i i mests both of the Fllovwing eonaditsmrs and 15 ot designated & ab
F¥TFL:
# The instroment is keld wichin g business madel, the objective of which is schieved by both colleciing commgiin
cazh s and selling Ninanilal aseets
& The controiunl 1erms ol the Tinancial asset meet the SPPL st
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A SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLETES (enntimsed)
1 Summary of material accomnting palicies (continued)
Finameind fnwira sty (omatinnod)

Uil diteimenes af FPOCT foontinueil)

FWVERCT debt instruments are subsequently messined & Fair vobue with gains ood losses arising due o changes in fis
vilue recognised in O] Interest income and foreign exchorge pains ond losses are recopnised in siakement of
comprefiensive income in the same manmer as for Fnonciol s mersared @ amortis:d cosk

Egrwtfy fabeivaniments b FIYRCT

Lipon initial recagnition, thie Growp oceasionally sleets o clesfy irrevocshly some of #s eguity invesiments ns equity
mstnanents g FVORCL when they meet ke definition of definition of equity uider TAS 32 Finascial Iostruments;
Presentation and are nok beld for troding. Such classification is determined ve an ingtnanent-hy=instrament hisis,

Crains anad Iosses an Wlese equity instromerds ore aever recyebad 1o profi, Dividends are recopmised in profii or loss 0s
nther operating income when the right of the payment has been esiablished, except when the Group benefits from such
procesds a5 o recovery of port of the oost of the instrument, b which case, such gaing are recorded in OCL Fuiy
instnaents al FYOCT gre pot sulbsject (o an impoimeont assessnent.

st fonl assets and Torecial Robelves o e valae Sevagh profir or foss
Financial assets and finoneial liabllishs in this cabegory ore those that ore got held Tor ading and have beoir either
clesignated by memogament upar initinf recogn ition or are mamdaionly eguired ie e nvesared af faie valee ureler IFTRS
9. Munagement anly desigantes o instrument al FY PL apon iniind recopnitian when one of the Fodlowing erileria ang
el Such desipnaiion s detemmined on an instroment-by-instrument kasis:

® The designation eliminates, of sipnificanily reduces, the inconsisgent irsatment that would oiberwise srize from
mensaring the gssees or labilities or recognising gning of lesses on ilsem on a different basis, ar

= The liabHities are past of o group of firancial liahilsies, which are managed and their performmme: cralisied ona
fulr vitlue basis. in accardanee with & documented risk manngement or invesiment stmiegy, or

® Thi liahilitics comnin one or mare enboedded dervatives, ombess they dis pot significanily modife the cash Nows
thant wonlel orherwise be required by thee comtret, or it is chear with Tale or no analysls when a similar insmiment
Is st corsddensd thut seporotion of the entbedded derivativel sy is probibited

Financind asscrs and finoncinl Habilities at FYPL ore recorded i the siatdment of finmcial pasition @ fir vloe,
Uliamges. i fair valye are recorded in profit amd lass with the exception of mevements in falr valee of lshilites
deignated ot FYPL due 1o changes in the Group's own ceedit risk. Such chasees in fiir valoe are recorded in the Ciwn
eredit reseeve theoagh OCT and do not get recveled Lo the profit oe loss, Injensst eamed or ncurred on instruments
designated ol FYPL s acerued in interest income or interest cxpense, respectively, wsang the E R, @king infe aceeunt
oy diseound! premivm snd gualifying iransction costs sing an infégral past of instroment, Inferest carmed on assss
mnndatarily nequired o be measured al FYPL is recorded using ihe contraciual interest sae, Dividend ncome Trom
equity instments ineosunad ot FYPL is recorded in profit or loss a4 olher operting incame when the right 1o the
pienrent hes been cinbdished,

Iid} Reclomnficanm of Mkl aasaly aod Fahilities
Fhee Grrangp docs nol feclassly s Amoncind assets subsequent 1o their mitial ceeognition. Faoncial lnbilisies ane never
peclassified

i Derecopmition af Srarcinl et ond Sy

Dewevopaitian due b svbstontived modifieatiag o tevrs e commaliiiams

The Group derscognises o financial sssel swech as o loan 1o o customer, when the terms amd comditiens have boen
rencgodiated oo i extent thol substantindly, it becomes 3 new Josn, with the dilferesce recognised as o derecognition
gain o loss, o e extent that an impaicment foss bos mal olnssdy been recorded. The newly recoprised loms ane
clissilied as Sage 1 for ECL nsenstremuend purposes

Wihien assesaling whelher or pat b derecogntue o loan W o customer, the Group considers venions Mobors,

11
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Filmametad st (comfiaed)

ey Dewvevogrition of fimarcard assers wod Bobilities feontinged)
Dherpempmition due to sibatositin modification af fermr and comtitian

IF ke mesdification daes ol nesull in cash flows that are sabstantiolly different, the modification does nob result i
derecagnition. Based on the change in cash Gows discounted ut the originad EIR, the Group necords o modilication gain
or boss, W e extent thal an impairment boss has notslrcady been recorded. For financinl linhilities, the Group considers
A ubndification substantiol based o qualitative Ficrors asd §F i resulis inoa difference bovveon the adfusted dscodnted
present wilee and the sriginal carrying amawnt of e financial lefility of, or greater than, fen percent, Fre financial
pasets, this assessmeent 5 bosed on quealitotive Gctars.

Ferivpprition arber iaa far selaamiiol modifeation

Fimamoied wssers

A Minanciol assen (or, where applicable, 2 part of & linancial asset or pan of @ group of similar fmancial assets) is
terecopmisad when the pights b reeeive cash Qows from the financial gsse have expired. The Group also deranopnises
thve fimansinl asset a0 s both ramsferred the Aol asset and s transfier gqualifics G denccognition

The Group hos vransPerred the Diancial a5t i ond oaly if the Group has tronaferred s contraciual rights (o receive
cash lows frosm ibe fEnoncinl osiel,

A transler enly qualifles lor derecognition if eigher;
& The Group las trnaferred subsianiinlky all the s and rewassds of il asset, (R
#  The diroup has oeither ransferred por retained sobstaitially. all the rides and rewnrds of the asset, but has
trunslerred confrol of the asss)

The Ginvup comsiders eoniral o be womeferred if and only if, the iransferes bas the proctical ab ity w sell the asser in
its enfirety b an varelaied thand pery omd is able e exercise that shility unilaterally amd willsoul impesiimg wcklitisnal
restriclions on the tmmsfer

When the Groug has neather transferred nor retaised substanizally all the risks and rewards amil has resained coniral of
U aszact, the nsset continues 1o be recognised only 1o the extent of the Grrosp *s continabng valvement, anwhich o,
the Cerpup alse recognlses an associated Bobility, The transferoed ssses and the sssecined liahility ore mensured ong
hias dhat peflect the riphts and obl igadions that the Group has retained,

Continubng involvement that fakes the form of o guaraiiée over the mnsfemed asset is messured of the Tower of the
ariginal camying anvount of the asset and the maximum amound of consideration the Croup could be required 1o pay, 11
conlimuing involvement tukes the form of o weitten of porchased option tor hath) on the irmnsferred assel, the captining
fnvalvement is meassred af the value the Croup woold be requived 1o pay upms repirehase [n il case of a writlen pat
eptien o andssel that s measured ot fuie vadog, the extent of the entity's comuing invelvement is limitesd 3o ihe lower
of the Fair vadue of the iransfermad asset aid the opliva ceercise price,

Efspcaicslend Newhifirdey

A fivsncial linkilay s devecognised when the obligation umder te liabiliny 5 discharped, cancelled or expires. Where
am existing fnancial Hability is reploced by anoilver From the same lender on substantially different terms, or the e
of un existing linbility are substamslly modifeal, sugh on exchange or nudiffcasom b wveatsd 05 o dereeegnilion of e
origingl lability and tbe recognition of & new Habiliy, The difference besween the carrying value of the origingl
lnancinl linbility and the consideration pakd & recognized in profil o lass,

Xl
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3 EUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICTES feaiillnued)
L Summary of material accounting pobicies (eontinued |
Fimanrtad IEinnmeres feomiiued)

v e o Mmaaeial dekets o Foamaciad fabilitier

Financinl #55cis and fnancial liahilities are offset and the set amoun & repaned in ihe simtensent of’ financial positos
I 16w corrently anforesahie legal right 1o s T5e1 the recognised pmsunis and fhere & an imention lo seitle on g nel
batsis, 1o realise the sssets and sentde the linhilities simultanenusly

Firaneial assets anid fnancial lahilitves ane generally reporied gross in the stiément of financial position exept when
IFRS netting criteria are met,

w fipuniemen af Faaacdal aoedy

Chervkew ol e ECL principles
[ Cirvup records an allewones for expeched enedit lass for all ks and obher debd Ginancial assets not beld gl FYPL
all peferred to a6 “Nnanciad Bsrunents’, Equily insinemsents are nod subject to impairment under IFRS 9,

Chis BECL allovance is based oo the coedil fosses expecied 1o arise ever the Giliz of the asset [Ihe lifetime expected credil
bosses or LTECLY, unbess there has heen no signiffcant increase in oredil risk since orlgimation. in which cosé, the
ablvavance is based on the 12 months” expected credil lesses (1 2mECEY The Gronp™s policies for degermiming il there
has been g sipnificant merease in eredit sk are 521 o0 m noig 27

The 12mPCL s b porthon of LTECL that represent the ECL thai resuli from defanlt evers on o financial insinimeni
that are possible within the 12 maenths after the reparting done. Batly LTECL and 12 ECL are caleulabed on either an
individual basis or 4 collective besis, depending on the mpaere of the snderlyving peafolio ol finoecial insinements,

The Grrvaip his establishied a policy to perfonn an azsessneenl. ol the end of enchreponting periad, of whether a financial
instnamen’s eredid risk hos dncreased significantly since inftfal recognition. by covsidering the change in the risk of
defiull oceurring aver the rgmaiming life of the finecial instrument

Based an the abwve progess, (he Group groaps s o o Stge 1, Staee 2 and Stage 3, as described below!

= slage 12 When loans are Ticst recoppised. the Group recosmises an allowance Based on 12mECL. Singe | loans alsas
inchade foeilities where dle credit nisk has improved angl the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2

= Slage 20 When o lons les shasin g significant incredsy in vredit risk since argmatiom, the Cnmop reconds g
alkwwanee for the LTECL. Siage 2 loans alsa melude focilities, where the credit risk has impreved and the loan bos
bevn reclasmsified from Sanpe 3.

= Binge 32 Loans consideted enedit-impaired. The Group recands an allovwance for the LTECL

Far fnancind assets for which the Groop has mo seseaable expectations of recavering eiller the entine oulsiznding
s, o 8 proportion thereol, se gross carrving amaovmt of the finoneial asset is reduced. This is considered a [partiol )
derzeopnition o the inoncinl s,

Fife celcalarion of EOCL

The Giroap calewlates ECL based ca o three probabiliy-weighted scennrios 10 mensure the expected cosh shor falis,
discenmicd alan apprisimation (o the FIK. A cash shorifall is the diflerence betwess the cash fbiws that ane due io m
enfity in pecordanse with the contrac and the cash Noows that the entily expects o reeeive.
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3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continned}
4 Summary of material peconniing polleies (contknued

Fimguctal iRy {oorfingea)
The coleseintieine m B foonfmaodi

[ enschaics of the BCL, enkeulations are iutlined below sl the Key clements are, s fllaws:

P The Probahilivy of Defindt is an estimate of the likelifond of defoullover o given time harizan, A
defanli may only happen aba cerain time over e assessed period. A the Taciline las fob been
praviowsdy derecognised and is sill in the porfolio, The concepd of P is further explained in noie
a1,

EAD T Exposare at Defanlt (5 an cstimane of the exposarne at a Fatuee @l date, ahing fine astouil
expecicl changes m the ceposure aller |he dopeeting daie, inclunling repoymentis of prinipal and
isteresl whether schecheled by contraet or atherawise, expeeted drosedowne on committed Boilities,
and peengsd interest [rom messed payoents, Tle: EALY s (uher explained in noste 345,

Ll The Loss Given Dielauk i< an estimaee of the boss asing i e case where o defnull eoours & a
Liven timae. 1 iz boazad an the difference beoween the contraciusl cash Nows due omd bese kol the
lemder would espect s resebve, Imcludlng frem the reglisatim of oy collstent or enedil
enhancements e are inlegral o e loam and vot required 1 be recognised sepanately, 10is usaally
expressed s n pereeninge of the EAL, The LGT s further explained in nabe 27,

When estimating the ECL, the Croop comsiders three scennrios (a hose cose, an upside, 8 downside), Fach ol these i
agocinted with diffierent FDs, EADD and LGDE a5 40t ot belovw. When releyvant, the assegment of nnliiplke seenariog
e inuc-rp-:-rul:-s o defaulicd loans are expecled o be recoverad, inchiding the prohability bl the loans will cure
arkl e vitlue of callutvral or the amoun that might be recelved for selling the asser

Ienpairment bosses amil relesses ore nccomibed fir ard diselised separsiely From modification lasses or goins that are
acconnsed for oy an adjustment of the Nnanclal asset’s gross carmying value.

The miechumics of the FCT, methed ave smmnrised below:

Slage | The 12mECL is enboulnted o8 the porion of LTECL thar eepresent the ECL tha reao®t fram detaul)
ewgnis o a Bnarcial instrioment that are possihbe within the 12 seonths after e reporting date.
The Group enlealntes the | 3mECL allowonge bosed oo she expecinion of o defaule oceurring in
the 12 msonthe following the reporting dote. Thede expedied | 2-month defoull probabilitles e
apphicd to a1 forecnss EAD and muliipled v oibe expected LGDY omd discoumed by an
approcimetion s the orlginal EIR. This calculation = made for gach of the four scenarios, oz
euplidived abowe.

Siape 2 When @ loan his showa i significant incresse in oredil sk since orginagion, the Croup reconds an
allenvimees (or the LTECL. The mechanics are similar i these explained above, incfuding the nee
Dfl'ﬂuh:iph.‘: secnarked. bt P0s and LG D are estimated over the Iifeirme of the msinement. The
expectil cash shortfalls ane discownted by on approsimastion 1o the argingl EIR.

Sampe 3 Faw loans considered eradil-impaired, the Group recogrisss the lifetime expecied credit lomses for
ihezse loang, The method is siilar to than for Seage 2 asses, with dhe PO ser o 10004

The Girgwip alsio considers the ferward-leoking mformmion i s sssessment of sippificant deterlorntion e coadit risk
since originaton aswzll as ihe measurcinent of ECLs,

The laraard-foeking informemtion will inelids the dhomenis fech os expert judgemend, macroeconomic Tactiors (eg-
wimployment, GO growth, nfletion ansl profit mieshwnd ceonomic forecists ohiwined shrovgh inernol mnd exiernnl
SHIMDES
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3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimned )
33 Summary of material accounting policies {contimued )
Fimncin! farstrunreary feannin i)

et frontramients wanasured ar foie welie Hivamgl (0

The BCLL Tor debi instrumesis measioned a0 FVOCL doopat reduce the comrving pmoant of these financinl pstets in the
stutenent of lirancial pogition. which remning s fair value, Instead, on omeunt equal 1o the aflowinses thal woalkd arise
il the pssets were messired a8 amoriised cost i recognised in 0L a8 am accumuloted impairment amounl, with p
correspanding charee 1o profit or kss The oceumnlsfed s regopnised in OO i recvelad o the prafin and loss upen
derccngnition ol the mesels,

Wil ety rmifaaracemenir elfaresy valsanian

Ta mili!ul: s eredit Fisks an fnoncial asxscks, the Ceroup seeks o nse cnllaseral, where possible, The collaieral comes
in form of pessenal guarantees, real estte and velicles, Collateral, isless reposssssed, 19 o recorded on the Group's
sialemnent of financial pesition. Cash Mows expeciesl frons credil enhascements which ane niol required fs be recognised
separafely by IFRS staslards and wiich are considered integral to the condrugtugl erme of o dibt jnstrument which is
subpect lo FCL, are included in e mesmsurement of these BEL. Do this hasis, the Fair valwe of collasernl alfeces the
calealation of ECL. Collateral is genernlly nssessed, af n minimm, at ineeption and re-assessed an an annoni basis by
thes aipproved extemol yoluer.

Lo ahee expent possible, the Groop wes nctive morked dars for saluing Grancial assets beld s collaséral O4her nsmeial
st which donod fave readily detesminable market values are valoed osing madals, Man=fnancial collsiemd, sich os
real estale, B valucd bised on datn provided by thind parties,

il If"ll.lr.::u!ﬁ

Loares aml debt securies ore writlen ofF (either pankally or o full) wisei there Is oo realistic prespect of rommwery.
However, financial nssets that srewrisen off coubd still he subject o enforcement activities in erder b comply with the
Crroup s procedures Tar recovery of amounts due, IF the amouit e be swiitten ofl i greater tsan e accumibied loss
allewance. the difference is first treatad 25 an sddition w the allewince that i then applicd against the gross camying
g, Any subEeguent rocenies are presented as eiber inceme in the sitemean of coamprebsngive incoms,

iz Reprogessied covsed trelad for salfe
The Ciroigr's palicy is o classily the assels reposamseed a5 asseie held Tor sale. o Talr value less cost o oscll s the

repossession dnie

Subsicguent o initid recogiiticn, wry subseguenl wiiks dovwe fo (e valiss, less eosts sl ae charged sithe dalement
of comprebensive income. Any subsseent revaluation gain in the fair value less costs to sell of these pssets to b
extent s does not exceed the cumubative write down is recognised in the ststement of comprehensive ineame. Cains
ur bosses on dispostl are récognised i the sawment of comprehensive income

Revenne S expensey recogaition

S-i'ﬂl't'n'u.rl.‘r.l.l.um'r.tr.'.m anceanE ard EXPRTLT

Mol specinl commission meonte comproes specel commssion income and special commession expense coboulated
using both the effective inernest method, These ore disclosed separately on the face of the Ivcome stement Tor both
special commission inconve anel speciol commission expense W provide symmetrical and comparable infrmation. The
'rl'li.-cl_i'-'r ingerest rabe is the rate thal expcily Escounts estimated flure esh payvmenis or receipts throwgh the expected
Lt of the finmenal esseq or Bability os, when appeoprinte. o shonter petiol 1o the pross corey e amount of the Snanc sl
ussel

When cakeulating dbe sflenive mersst mee for finasciol msirumenis ather than creditimpained assets, the Group
estimates fune casl Nenws considering all contrmesund teoms of the financizl msimiment, ot not expecied credit loses,
Far eredit-impaived finnncial asseis, o credil-adusted offective inferest mte is calculnted psmg estimated fulure cosh
Monws ineduding expected eredin loses, The caloalation of the affeciive inferest mie inclodes frossaction cosis amd any
dbscounl or prentiam on the peguisition of the financial &ssal, a5 well as Fees and costs il are an limegoal par of the
effective inferest mte, Tranzaction eos1s lvclede honsmental cosls (ol sne directly altribitnble @ the soquisition o
e ol & fmarseind asset or finaecial liobility.
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A SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICTES {contimued)

A% Summary of materinl pecounting poficies {continmed)
Revennwe Sexpenses recoginiiion (eomiimed]

Medmuremiem of avmoriized comi arrel specio connrirsian (oo
Fhe ‘mmartized cost' of 2 fnanciz) pssed or Trancial aoiliey is e amount @ owhech the linanckal nsset or Mnancial
liahility &5 neersred o6 mitial recogniibon minas ihe priccipel repayments, plos of moes e comulatyve amortization
wsing the effective interest method oF oy difference betwesn that inbtial umount sod the moturity amount and, fog
finnncial mssees. slfusted for oy expecied aedit loss allow mce.

The 'gross carrying amawent of o fnsneiad gse b5 the amotized cost of o financial osset befire silusting fr any
expecied credil loss allowance.

In calculaging specizl commission insanme and expense, the elfective imesest e is opplied G the gross samying amsumni
of the asset (when the asser B oot credi-impained] or o the amortized costof the Tahiliy.

Hiswewer, for financial sssels that have become eredit-impaired sabseguent o nitial recegnition, special commission
incame is sispended. 1T e asse is mo longer coodsi=inpuired. then the caleulnlion of special commussion incone neverts
tin e g badi,

For fivancial asscts that were credit-igmpained o initisf recognition, naleresl inconme is calcelated by applying e credil-
au jusksdl eflisctive iterest rale lo the ameriesd cos ol the nsset. The enleulaign ol interest income does nat reverd lo g
gross hasis even il the coedin nsk o1 1he assel improves,

Tiseztnimne Cromm carky settlement fees is recoprized upe (be carly ermination of contract by the cosomer and fees charged
il thal i

Emrnlagy per shore
Bz and dilwled enrmings per share ore caboubited by dividing the net incoae Tor the year by wesshied average numiler
ol shares outandmy daning the yor .

frpemsey
Lieroral anl sdimenagerntion expenss: meluds direct and indirest costs it spedifically forming part of spemting costs

Murstvess combiaarionrs and goodwill

Basingsy comtinationd are accoumbed Gvr usimg the aeguisition method, The codt af an aspisition is mensued s e
aggregites of the considerntion ransfered. which s measured st acquisivien dae fair value, and the amound of any nom-
comtrolling interests im the acguaree. Far each business combinmion, the Group elecls whether 1o measere the non-
wontrilling inferesis in the acquires of fiér value or & ihe progonionaie share of the acquizes"s identifiable net asseis,
Apquisition=relaed costs are exprersed as incurred il incleded n genenal ond adminisrative expenses.

Tloe Girpap determines that i has acquired o bysiness wisen the acqudred sen ol activithes and assete inglude an inpat and
o gehstmtive process that trgethor signilicently ¢oniribute o the abilily b creole outputs, The soquined process iy
cutsidered substmtive i it is critical to the abilily 1o continus: produciag salpots sad the inpats acguited inclale an
orpanisal workfome with the nevessary gkills, knowbedge, or experence o perlom thal process or i sienlfcanily
conbribubes L the ability w continne produging ouiputs ond is considered unique of searce or carmol be replaced without
sipmilicomt cos, elTon, of delay b6 the aldlity o oomiige producing culpins

When the Ceriip acwires o business, itassesses the financial osse ad lakilites asssiaed Tar opproprisle classilicstion
il 1]-.‘H|g,llall|ull. i aecomnbanee with the cnracil temms, eoomemic circsmstances and pertinent comlilims a5 at the
acipuisition date. This meluides the separotion of embedded derivatives in hast conimees by ihe pequiree

Amry contingeni considerniion po be transfermed by (e acquirer will be recognised o fair value ai the acquisition date,
Contingent conssderatbon closifed ws equity 4 nol remeagired and 2 subsequent seilement ds decounted for within
cyaity. Contimgenl corsaderation classibied as pnoassel or lHabibity that is o fimoncial instnemend and walbim the scope of
IFRSD Finpncial Instnemenss, s mensuced @ folr valoe witls the elanges in Colr volue recognised In the siokenent of
prafll or kass in accordaice with IFRS & Oither contingent considengion that i nod within the soope of IFHS 9 &
mieasured o i volue @ each reponting date with chanpes in fair value recopaisad in profit or loss
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i SUMAMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICTES {cantinued)
33 Summary ol imaterizl aceaunling policies (contimued)

Buusiness combinations and goodweill (comined)

Ciooubwill B initially mensured ot cosl (being the eceess of the apgrepaie of the considerstion trnsferred mnd the amauni
recopnizad for nonscontrolling interssts and any previons interest beld over the net idenlifishle sae4s sequired and
hiikilities nssiemed | 17 the Foir valoe ol the net @asets acguered is in excess of the oppregaie considerotion rmsferad,
the Gromp re-assesses whether it hics cormecthy identified oll of the asseis aeqisred mmd all of ihe Habilities nssumed and
reviews the procedures wied o memre the smsunls b be recognimed nl the scquisition date, 11 the resstesment =il
resalis in an execss ol il i value of net assels scquired over the aggresnie considertlon oransfered. then the gabn |5
recognased im prodil ar less,

Adter initial recognition, goochwall s mensored an cost e @iy sccumulated impaicment hwses, For the parsmse of
impairmend festing. goodwill soquired in & business combimmtion i, from ihe acquisition date, afecated 1o guch of the
Group's cashi-generating undts that are expected o benefit From the combination. irrespective of whether other asseis
or liabilities ol the nogiires are aabgiesd te lsode wins,

Whiere gaodwill has heen albocutsd 1 b easl-permerating unit (CGL and part of the operation within thad unit i disposed
af, the gocdwill sssocisted with the disposed apersion iz ingluded in ile conving amocunt of the operation when
eheterminiing e pain or boss on disposad, Goodwill disposed in these ciioumanness is measured based on e relstive
values af the dispossd aptration and the portion ol 1he cash-generaling unit reznined

IF ahse inigial peconnting for 4 sinds combination is fcemplete by the end of the reporting period inowhich the
corniinntion occurs, the acguiner shall repoet in its consalidated provisional smomnis For the itens for which tie
aecobnting is meomplete. During the messwrement period, the: acquirer shall rerospectively sdjust the provisional
ainoanis recognised of the scquisition dite w reflect new informagion ohigined aboul focis ol circumsinneess that
exlsies] a5 of the acquisiton date and, iF knavwn, would hove affecied e medsusenént oF the Smaiis recognied as of
thal dme, During the measurement period, the acquirer shall also recagnise odditional assels or Biahilities if new
infonmation is olskained about facts aml circomstances thit esisesd as of the acguisalon date amd, I5known, would kave
resulied in e recognition ol fhase assets snd labiliics oz of that dste. The measrement period énds a5 soon as the
modjuirer receives the information it was secking aboul Prcts and circumsiniees that existied as of the aegigsition daie o
learns lsal more infremation is mat obeainoble, However, the mesurement grerod shall ot excesd pme veir Trom the
icipisilion dmie

Cielt and vash equledeus
For the purpose of ihe siement of cash Sows, cash and cosh syquivalents constst of bank balaees and cash | hane
il shor tarm bank depasits with erigingl maturities of tlsee momths or kess but does not inclade restricied cosh

sl
Property and equipment

Propery asd eguipment ore stated o1 cost bess sceomabsted depreciation and any aceumubated inpainneal i value, The
cusl lessestimated residual valie of property aisl equipren is deprecisted on n sirzight ling hisis over the estimnted

uszil Fves of the ssds,

e carrying vilues of property and equipment are reviewed For impairmenl when evenls or clangss incireumsianees
inslbczne i eartying value may not be recovernble, I amy swch indication exiss and whene flwe carmying vidues excesd
the estimated regoverable amaum, ihe asets are written down (o iheir recovernble amesnd. being the higher of their Cair
vithug ket consts b sedl s their value inowse,

Leasehild improvamenss ore amartised on 8 soaighi-bine basts over the shoreer af the usefisl lfe of dic
impravenwenlsseis o the temm of the bease, Expendiiure for repoir ol mombenance are chorged 1o shtemeny of
comprehensive income. Improvemenls that increass the value or muterially extend the 1if of e rebsted nsser are
cupilalsied,

I
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3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLW TES (continned)
a3 Sammary af material accoanting policies (continoed )
litmigeible acnsfs

Intangible assets sequicsd sepurtely ore messared on initind reciegnition o2 cost. Fallowing the infizl recognifion,
Imangihls amels are comied o cost less accumubated amortlzaion and accumalated linpairment lessis, 10 any,
Amortizmion 15 resopniasd an & Arighi-linee basis over heir estimpbed uselal lives, The esimated useful Tife pod
emrtization melthod 2re roviewed o each fnonciol veor-end, withoibe et of sy changes in estimate being accounted
[ an @ prospecive basis

[ carrying volues ufinmnglhlu aszels are reviewed for imparrment when events or chamges i coreumstances indicale
fhe carrving valoe meay s be recovernble, 1T any such indication exizis and where the cormying values exceed the
catamtied recoverable amount, the assets are widten down o thar recoverabie amoanl, bemg the higher of ther Gair
valure Jess gosts 0 sl and thesr value in e,

Apcoumiing for feaxey

Urinitial recognitin, sl imoeption sl the controct. the Group shall assess whether the coniract 15 o contains. a lease,
Aocomtract s o goniaing, a bease 5 e contract convevs the right 10 congrd the use of on ideniied asset for o period
of time m exchange For consideration, Conmrol i idenifed iF most of e beoelits are fowing o the Grodp aied the
Group can direet the usoge of such sscts.

AL lnception or on regssessment of pcontroet that contains & lease compunend, the Group allocates e consideration i
fhe: comiract 10 each leass compaonent on fhe basis of their relative simdealone prices. Howeser, for the beises of lnnd
i buildings in which it is a lessee, the CGiroup has elecsed not o separawe ton-lease congponents and aceounl for tie
lease anid non=lense eomponents &8 & single lease componenl

gl of Lie Axsois (fodd)

The Group appky cost misdel, amd nemsure right of wse asset ol cosi;
1o Lizs any sccumulated depreciation and anmy sceoimlabed sepainment keses; and
2. Addiusted for gy re-nicasterement of e lepse liahkility for lease modifications

Ciemgrally, Boll gssed would be cqual 1o ibe lerse linhilise, However, iF there ane additional costs such s Siie
preparition, nob-refmdable deposiis, application money, sther espenses felated b imnspetbon el need tbe added o
e Bl asset value,

The right-af-use asset is subscquently depreciaed using the sraighi=line msthod Soom the commencement e o the
carrlier of the el of the asefall Dfe of the sightenluse astet or the end of the bease tferm. The éstimated useful Fves of
right-od-use sty are delermined o ihe seme basis as theee of property aod eguipnsent

Lot Ligatilin

Onimitizl recognison, he b= Tabilny is (he present valee af oll remaiming paymenss 1o the lessor, discenmied using
the: interess rake dmplicic in e lease or, iF it rse cannot be réadily detesminad, the Group s incremenind bormowing
rarc. Generally. the Group uses fs imereinenta] byrmowling rate as the discoant rte,

After e conanencemeni dote, Grup measires the fease lishiliny by:
1, Inerensing ihe curmy g amount o orellect intessst on the lense Fobility.
2, Feducing e carvying omomnt o rellect the kase poyments made and;

Re-measuring the camying armount i refkect pny re-nssessment or lease modificarion. The lease liabilizy I8 measured ol
wmorieed cos using fhe ellocive inberest method, 10 s remeeasered when there is & chonge in funere Tease paymends
prising frain o change it an index o mie, §iF there is o change in the Group ‘s estinate of the amount expected to-be
payable under o regidud valoe guarantes, or ITthe Grsup chinpes ie ssssssment of whelber it will exercise o purchas:,
exfension of [erminalis eplivn

When the lease lisbility & remeasured in this way, o comresgponding, odjustment is made b the carrving omount of the
right-nf-use asser, of & recorded in profit or Tess i the cormving amount of the dgh-of-ese usel has Been feduced 10
o 18

X
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33 Sammary af material accousting policies (cenlinned)

Acewiiantig for lemses fconilnned)

Mpr-rarwt feases amd leares af Tonsvaline arsers:

The Girmip has elected nab w0 reengnise ripht-of-use asasts and lease fabiliis for shorwenn leases ta hove o lease
erm of 12 morhs or les and lases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the kense payments asseciated with
hese beased ag-an expense oo o sigright-line hasis over the kease werm,

Fiurir vilue
Fair wslue is ihe price thar would be received 10 sell ain asser o pasd o ianater a labiliy in an ondesdy rramsaction
hetwesn market participariisat ihe measarement date, The [ir value messurement is based on the presumption that the
iransaction o sell the wsset or ransfer the liahifity mkes place silber;

* [ the principal morkes for the asset or liobility, o

® In the shsence ol o principnl market, in b mest sdvinlageous market for e asscl or abalily

Ihe priccipal or e mosi sdvonegeous morket muse be aceessible woby the Group, The Gur vadue of on 2sse1 o7 A
Hinbility i5 mensured using assumptions that market paricipants would use wihen pricing the assel or liahility, assuming
ihat ket participants net in their economic hesi Inferes

A Fair valipe measurenient of o non-Tinancial asset kes into pccount s market porticipont's obility b generate eobnomic
Benelits by using he ssset in its highest and Best use or by selling it oo anether market particgaim that would we the
asset Db s higheest and best pse.

Derivasive Foanclal lasioemenis

Drerivatlve financial instremsants wre initially recognised a0 Fair vabie an the dote on which o desivative comract ks
entered mes and are subzsquently re-messured for oy chenges i e lair valise. Debeatives are caried os fiksncial
mssets when the Fair value 15 posstove amd o Geancial liabifities when the foir value s negative. Aoy gains or lesses
arising from the changes in the fair value of derivaives are aben directly o satement of comprehensive ircmme

Fraprairriend of iav-current oy

The Geroaip pssesses at cuch reponting date whcther there i3 an indication ghit an asset may be impsaired, [y imbication
exisia ar when anaual impairment Lesting Tor an nsset is required, the Crroup estimntes the asset’s recoverakhle ameomg,
An nsset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-penerating unit’s (CGU) Fair valie less costs 1o sell
arel its value in use amnd B derenrined fr an mdividual zsse, unless the mssel does not generate cash inflows that one
Latpety indepemlent of those from sther nssels or groups of wsses, Whens the earrying s ol i asset or CG L
exteads it repoverable amouwl, e asset (s éonsidered nmpaired amd is werten doow 16 8% recovernhle amimznt,

I psssessimg vokue in wse, the sstimated Tibure cashy flows are discoumied o therr presend valoe wsng o pre-tay discounl
rabe that reflects cornent markel pssemsments of the fame vilue of money and the risks specific 1o the asse, In delenmining
Fuir valime less costs tosell an appronciate vabiuation ivodel §8 usod.

s calcelutions ure cormohesmsted by valuution multiples or eilsor avadlable fair vake indicstons,

linipagimem lostes of cordimsing operaiiones are racopnizsd in siiemem of eomprehensive income in those expénse
categories thot ore consident with the Mection of the impaired asset, For assels exchuding goodwill, an sssesament s
ezl cach reporting date s o whether thers is any s ication that previously recopnized impainment lesses may e
longer exist ar may have decreased. I sech indbeaion ez, the Gronp eaimales the a2ges o cngh-geierting unlc’s
recoverable amount. A previoesty recognized impairment loss s reverssd only if ther hos been o chonge in the
assnmpsins uscd o desennine the as=e1’s recoveralsle anrount slinee 1he tast mmpasrmc 1oss was recopnized,

The reversal is limited s that the carrying amount of the asset docs nol exceed its recoverable sivoud, nor exeesd the
carrying mmsouns thot woi kl hove been detenmmed, nel ol deprecatnon, had po impairment less been recogiized Doe the
aasek n poim Years Such reveral & recognized in dalement of comprebensive indome. lmpairmen los recogiized
dgning goodwill is nai reversed in subssquent periods.




Morabaha Marina Financing Compuny
A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

MNOTES TO THE CONSCHADATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { Continued )
3 Docomber 2029

4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICTES {continned)
5.3 Summary of material acesunling polickss (cantinued)

Avcaitms papeble abd socmioly
Liahilities wre rocopnised For amounis 1 e paid in the futare for gosds or services received, whether hilled by ihe
supplier o ik

Erplovess vl beiegfi

The Servap operatés o defined benelit phin for empbeyvess 18 acconlance with %audi Laboe Law as dolined by the
cosdilions stated in the Lews of the Kingdom ol Saudi Arabia, The eost of providing the benefits unsler the defined
bemefii plun is determined using the prajected unit cred i metlwd.

Rememsunements for actaarial gains ord lesses are recognised inmediopely in e stalement of fmaneial position with a
carruspording impact in edher comprelensive ineoine mthe peringd in which. they oecor. Hemeosiremends are nof
reclpmsified o saement of campréherave income in subsequent periods

Past service cost are revognied ln Satensent ol comprehensive incame on the earlier of:
o Thedate of ihe plan amendinesd or cartaslment, and
& Tlaz date the Group rovognises related restrscturing costs,

et special commission moome is calculated By opplying the discount rase o the net defined benef liability. The
Crroup recognises the following changes in the net defined benelit ohligation in satemant of comprehensve fncning;
®  Servicecostd comprising current servioe cosls, past 2ervice coss, paing and lesses on curtaibments and non=rouine
settlements (imder penernl and admvinisimtion expenses); and
= Bogt special commBssion exponse or ingane.

ik ol

Zakan is provided in sceordance with the regolations of the Zakar, Tay and Customs Auboeiny (*ZATCA™ i die
Kingdom of Soudi Arabio und a0 aecnanls Basis, A st ool e the pote 2, zaknl is chorged 1o the stabement of
comprehensive oo

Vel ailideed fax (=<FAT")

The Group collects VAT fram ils customers for qualifving seevices provided and makes VAT pavments b iis vendors
for qpaalifying paymeents, On a monthly basis, net VAT remittamces ore mode o the ZATCA represeating VAT collecied
from s customers, nd of dny recovernble VAT on pivments, Uarecoverable WAT 5 boroe by the Group and &
eapensed.

Buvirisivibigy

Special commission beastig funding frem fnancial instinitions and shareholders are measared at amortised cost using
b effective profin rte ("EPR™) method, Gaims md fosses are recopnised in satement ol comprehensive income when
ke Hiahiihities are derecegiiised as well s through the EPR amartizolion process

Amorized cost = calelaed by aking oo sccount sy discount or preminm on acoquisism pod fees or costs hal are
an infegral part of te EFE. Fle EPR amortization is mcluded in - spedial commission experse in the sizcmen of
oo preheidnve inomme.

CHFVEFTE R iy

Coovernment grmts are regopnised where there i reasonable assurance that the grant will he received and all obinehed
conditions will be complied with, When the grng relates to i cxpense Hei, it 5 recogiissd as ineome an 5 syedeinnlic
hasis over the periods thot the related cosis, for which it is imercded 10 compensale, are axpensed. When the prant relotes
b 3 assed, i I8 recopnised as income in equal amounts over the expecied usclul Nl of Uy related assel.

When the Group receives grams of oon=monetpry assers, the psset and the prant are recorded st nominal anwes ond
released o sement of comprehensive income over the expected uselul Tife of the assel based on ke patbern of
commpan el the benelis ol the wlerlying asset by eopml nonsal instalmenis,
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3 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E & Summary of materinl acenamiing policies {centinmed)
Pravivions

Prowisions are recogibised when the Group has o presend shiigagian {legal or constructive) as a resuli of pest everns, and
B s prodahle that snoouflow of resourees enibodying seonveie banefits will be required o szitle the oblipation. and «
relinbde ealimate can be made of the amound of the obligntion, When the effect of the time valae of money is material,
the Group daermines the level of provision by discounting the expecied cash Nows at 3 pre-ax rate reflecting the
cureenl rates specific o ks Hobility, The expemse neloting o any provision is presenbed in the income siatement nel of
any reimburscment moather operating expenss,

Troawur) sivares
Frcazury shares are reconded @i acquisilion cost aml presented as o deductisn froi equity. Any gains or ko on
disposal of sach shares are reflected ander exquity aml ane ol recopnised in the consalidpied sintement of inceme.

Farelpa curreioles

Transscisns m farcign currencies pre recorded in Saudi Bivals ar the race ruling a1 e dase of the cransscion, Monerany
nssets and fiohilities denomimated I foreigi esrrencies are refrnslated of the rate of exchonge ruling of the reporting
chite. All diffenmices are charged te smiement o comprehiensive meaie.

& rr| ﬂg B N 1
A segiment 15 o distimpuishoble componeont of the Group that i enguged in provicing products or saeyeees (a business
segrient, which s r-|||.'|_||.'|.'| L risks il rewards thar are diffenent finm {hase of sther sepmeniz

Awvel wnder managesend
Fslamic fnancing receivables in which the Group act us Manoging agent are not trealed s assers of the Group s,
accondingly. are nol incladed im these accompanyiing financlal statements.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The prepamation of the consalidated Anoncial sioements in confomity with IFRS as epdorsed i the KSA md ather
slandards and prosiuncements that are endersed by SOCPAL reguires the use ol cenain eritical sceounting judgements,
catimates angd assEmptions: thol affeet the wepored amenis of assets and Rabalities, B also requires marmagemenil s
enercise s judgement in the procass of applying the Group's scoointing palcies. Such judgements, estimates, ad
nzsumpticns are contitnally evalusted and ore baded an historical exporicncs and other Buctors, including oblein iy
professionil advices and expectaiong of famire evends bl se believed o be repsanable under the circumsinnees

The significont necounting estimates wipacted by these fovecnss and associted ucersinties are predominaatly nelotesl
toexprchod credit heases, fadr value mensorement. and the sssesanent of the recoverable amouit of non-financls assets,

Hevissons 1o scoounting extimates are recognised in the pened inwhich the estimate is revised, i the revision offccs
only bl periad, or in the peciod of revislon and fis Mulure perio@s i e revision afTects both cornent sad fuliee periods.
Signilieant arexs wlsre momgement has osed egimates, nessumptions or exercissd fidpemesis ore 2 Tollows;

.ﬂ'ﬁl.‘vl"ﬂ'l".l'ﬂ’ﬂ,_l,' Fiee feade ferm of coedfraces with resewal ood fernirotiar oplory

e Ciroup detemmines the lense lemm as the pon-cancedlble werm of the leass, wgether with any pediods covered by an
aptin fe exiend ihe lease if B s seseoably cortiin b be exercised, oF any perods coversd by an opliom o terminale
il lease, i 5 s reasonably coriaim m 1o he exercised

An
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {eontinued |

IReferamining the leove terne of contraces with eemewad mied ferpdmanion aprioos (eamtined)

The Graousp has several lease aoittracts thal melude extension and lermination options. The Group applie: judpement in
l."r:lluu.'ll:ulg whithir il is seasonnhly certnin swhether or nob o exercise the oplion s remew or terminole e lease That
i, il eomsiders all relevant Faetors thai cretie ar sconomie meentive for 0o exerelse elther 1he renesal or sernaination,
Afier the commencemend date, the Ciraup reassesses ibe lease leon iF there 5 s s'pg,ui:ﬁiﬂnl eveml ar -.'Il;angr 5T
clreumstnnees e is within its contred and alTeos its ability (o esercise or ot 1o exercise the oplion [0 renew o B
termine e, consruction of signilicas Rasebold smprovemenls or significand costmizgion Gis e leasal asser),
Furthermaore, the perioids covered by benmingtion eptions s included s poart of the teass derm only when ey are
rensonnfly cerain nol o he exereised.

Lemses = Evtimmaning the incremental barrowiing rae

The Crrgugr ernmnl readily depermiie the inerest rale imphcit in the lease, Derefore, it uses s mcecimerial bomos lng
rate (3R 10 measaare Jense linhilities. The |RE is the rage of mbterss) that the l'hqu.tp wiriild have 10 pay tn horraw over
& similar term, and with & dinklar deewrin, the lasds possasary e oblain an asse of o amblor value w the right-of-use
gt [ o similar ecomomic envirommen . Thie IR (herefoce reflects what the Crrap “wenaehd have bo o, which roquines
wilimation when na abservable rales ane avallable or shen they need oo b adjussed 1o reflect the demms and conditions
of the bease, The {:rl'.lup cetimabies e [BR, using abservakle inputs (such os markel imeres mbes) whin avaikalde amd &
revjumred 1o make corinin entilv-specific esfimnles,

Fiele winliie ) ffiancial fosdrr i

The Fair volue of financial instrumenis is fhe price that would be seccived 1o 2ell aiy asset of paid to-transfer a linbiligy
in g orderdy trnnsacdion in the principal (or most sdvomogeoss) macket o the mensiremens date wicler eurrent morket
cumditions (i am exil price} repandless of wheiber thai price 12 divscthy cheervable or estlinated vsng another vakuation
tzchnigue, Whes the fair values of fnasciol assets and Gnamcind lidilities recorded in the stalement of Tinanetal posithon
carnel ba derived from sciive markets, they ore detesmined psing o variety of valmion iechniques ths inclode the use
of valunation models. The inpois o deese maodels are weken Tom observable murkeis whire possible, i where this ix
mat funsible, estimation i< required in céablzhing Mir vidues, Jucwements and esimiles molude congiderations of
Figuidigy and model inpuls related o dlems suels a5 cradit eisk (bath osen amd counterparty | Rinding valee ndjustmenis,
eorrelatlon arml volatiliv,

fpmirameny losses o flawrelal s

The measureiient ol inlpnin:nml rvsses under IFRS 9 in respect of [slomic lnanging receivabdes requines cerlzin gmount
of julgament including the assessment of & slgrdficant merease n crolit elsk. These esthmages are driven by g number
of factors. chonges in which can result in difTerean hevels of ollewinoes. The Group™s Expected Credin Less (ECLT)
calculations are outpats of medels with uinderying assimptions repanding the choiss of voriahi: inpuls aml their
imlerdependencics. Elemens of the ECL models that ore considensd secomiing julgensents amd estlmaes [nelude
saslgmmen of Frobabiliny of DeGulis PO ), ariteria Tor n,::r.ussirhg significont increase in credil risk, segmentaliog of
receivabies i amy, development of ECL models iwledmg e vanoes fomnilas and ispats, defermination of
assaciaionE Behveen macreoondginie scerprins and, ecandamic inputs, anid the cffect on Pids, Fxposures al Trefault
CEADT wmd Less Glven Defaule (CLGLETL wHecten of foewand-leoking . maesosconsmic scennmos nngl dheir
protakility welghtings, fo derive the cconontic inpuls mibo the ECL misleks,

Faplopees” defluen beweflts plaes

Tl casl ol end ol service henefil plamns aml the present valoe of el of service benel ohligations ared determined using
sctuarinl valuasions, An actuaral valiation invelves making varous assumptions, wideh moy differ from: actual
dl."rt-lﬂ'pmtmﬁ it lbse Tufure. These mclude the delermination of the discoant robe, Future saliry mcreases, n'mrl'.u|il} rabes
arut Fabsire pension incresses, Dae o the complesity of the salestion, the underlying assamptions and its king=term
mitrg, a defined benelin obligation is bighly sensitive s chonpes in Mese assumptions. All assumplions sre reyiowad
ol gach reporting date.

I'lie rioil senslive paramglers are dizcount rale amd finure salary incremses, In delermining the approprialbe deicounl
rilke, manapement congiders the markel viehl oo high qualits corpornie bonds. Futere saliny incressss ane basgd on the
expected Tueure inllation raies, sentorily, promation, demand ad supply in the emplayment markal

The mipmiakity rote i based on publicly avaltable lecal monality ables. Thase momality ahbles fend o change only al
mitervals in respoense W demngmphic chenges,

Furibier detaily abaot omplovoss” vl o servies henelits are provided in tate 20,

il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued )
31 December X123

4 CRITHCAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {oantined j

ey concery

e Ceronap”s manogement has masde am assessment of the Girop's ahiliiy (o cpnine @ 0 going coreern and o sisdicd
thit the Cimip lias de resiurces b conlinge in basmess for the Foreteeable idune. Fusthemore, the managdanent is na
awvare af gy muderinl uneerizEinties thot may cast significamt doabt wpoen the Group’s akelity 1o confinue 15 a going
comeem. Therdfime, the conselidated fimarcial stalemenis combinue fbe prepared on 2 golig comeem hasis

Disefid Hves af property and egadpineat and intangible e

The Cirnap = manpjpement cleiermines the sstimnied esefial lives of its propedy ard eguipment and igsgible &8ss Gar
calenluting depreciation and amoriieaian, Thes catbmase s determimed afier congidenng the expeded usage of the asseq
o :|'||I}'5:'H:.'l| wear and fear. Management reviews the residusl value ond nsefal lives anmally ol lialuire |h."p|‘L'1.'[|:|.i|=.!|Ik amcd
mrnsrtizadion chargs woull be adjusted wheee the management belisves the useful lves differ from previcas estimites,

dnepirirement of wow=finmrciol e

Tapairment exisns when the carving vabic of an 250 oF casls penerating unil exceeds b necoverable mmogn, which is
e hig'.hl.'r ol ils foir vohee less costs of |;EF.|1-|;:¢11| mnd s vadue i use, The fair vakue less oosts nl'di:qﬁml calcwlation is
basad ap available dn from banding dabss rmnssctons comlucied a1 wem's eagil for sinilar gsets o observable
nsarker prices less incremental cosls of disposing of the nssel, The valug in nse caloulaticn is bmsed on o DCF osedel.
The cosh Blows are derived Mrom the bedpat Tor the nest (ive years and de sat bnelids restrieiuring activities that ihe
Lireup s i vel commaibted e or significand ture investiments tht il enlsnce te porlvmmance of il assces of the
OO being iesied, The recoversghle amaunt is senslive o the discount rate used fior the DCF model ns well as ihe
expected Meare cahe-lnlows pid the growil mite wseld Toe extmpiodalion purposes Theswe e@)imated ane most selevant o
gondwill and oibver intmngibles wilh indelinite usefisl lives recognised by the Groip

The Group determines the e volue of Reposessed asel held for sale which negeired certain estimales and
as=amptions. The Croup enpage indeperdent exenal valier s detenning the (v volue

5 SPECIAL COMMISSHIN INCOME

Spocial commigsim mcome comprises of inceme from the flloying finoncing proccs:

2023 2022
SR SR
Tawnrrug 162,020,280 |52, T4 540
ljara 7,296 50 304510
169417, 106 [ SH. 10498

Adlibe special commission ingome ane from Ananging products which pre Shariah compliont.

T



Maorabaha Murina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued

5 Drecember 2023

i OTHER INCOME, NET
22 2niz
AR hT. o
Ineommse From carly s:Atlemend fecs G0RA 416 EIUELEN
Reslived gain on inferes ris swap 4,305,621 362 A00
Ginin on sale of nepuairssed pssets T ERG.903 1210, 760
Ulispealiacd | o) H_l.irl on intenest mle swap {node 19 (2687, 760 E. 5L 452
Bargnin purchass (oo F4h - ERCTIREATH
thers 2,500 1.3 16,065
10, TIE471 19,889,514
7 LGENERAL AND ADMINSTRATION EXFENSES
2021 ey
5K 5K
Sabries and emplovess” relsled cosis 55,234,560 A0 313,428
Dezpreciaion | noles |3 and [6) 7T 0T LTINS
Profesoaat &nd legal fees i, bl 492 5 AR6,17E
Infanmalion techmilisey cxpenses 5,051,755 2230 781
Amiortissiion gnaic 15) &, BHi 345 RELTOT
Boand of direclors remusermtion {note 18] R R[] (LR
Mon-claimable Y AT A, M2 1,156,891
Subscriptions 2.0, 170 145,08
Llkitilies expense 2 2TeHTT B,731,678
Blopairs and maintenance 45070 b 47
Cieveerrmment relsied expenses 499,395 5674
Uhther expenses SE0L 006 555611
BT IITETD i, B 19
5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
20623 2032
Sm SR
Bank bakances 1, B0,570 45605519
Short term deposiis fiwone ~a®) - REREEIEITER
Cagh i hamd 47,590 33452
B1.937.5978 fa Al
n Khort term depodts represent time deposits with local benks with maturitles of Tess thon § momths aid bave an

awerape rabe of rewim of 362% (2022 2 78%) per mouin. The Group aemed incmne ol S8 686 million (2022 SH
LA9 pillion §refer pate G on these shor term deposits. These deposits are imconventionad in nobures.

I} It Tirve: with the regquirements of fiunding faeifities pranted by the honk, the Groug had sei oside with o kmk SH
I million as restrivied wash deposiv

Al haink balances are sssessed fo havié bow eredit risk o they are beld with sepuinble and igh ensdin rating dompestic
Fanking instititions aid thene has boen o istery of delault with any of the Group hank balancs, Therelare, the
prabability of defiwlt bysed on forward leoking factors and any oss ghven defonls ane corsidered 1o be negligibh.

i3
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
31 December 2023

9 PFREFAYMEMNTS AND OTHER ASSETS

20X iz

SR SR
Frepaid expensys BR42 81T 1930512
Recefvable from sale af repussessal assei® A D66, %03 P43 747
YWAT receivahle 4080 3229 L7151 7%
Adlvanees o employecs supphers 088,585 13278117
Initial Public CoTering (0P00 cost dnote 18) = HoAMGE_ 1T
{Hhers 1075733 1335354

2X 063, THT E5T] 0%

*The Group had & Tawastig receivable rom poeaf the cusiomer whis defauhed during 2009 and the Group repossessed
the collaternl which was o real estate property, Drirg 2009, Group sold the repossessed property Tar S8 113 millian
con ) imusnths instalments, The balance represents the instalments receivable (net of uneamed ineome ) of e year e,
Thens bas bevn oo cefan it on the instaliment sinee the sake of e nsl essale property,

L] INVESTMENT AT FAIR YALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIY E INCOME

The Gronp owns wigicied investment of 2,33% sharcholding in Saudi Fissnee Leazing Contract Registry Compary.
Sl Fmonce Lensing Condroet Regisiry Compsmy bas been formed by the Group and ather finance and leasing
ermpanies. registered in e Kingdom of Sandi Ambia for repistration of coniracts relating to fnancinl keses and
amendmends and regisiration and transfer of title deeds of the aszetz under (he Nrmee leases amangements, The
investment is reconbed af eosf as managément belives thol fair value i3 not maserially different from eosl. s i
irvestment B nol mvarenal ard the Group”s marsgement is confident thor their ned matecal impact between its initial
eostand its Fy.

11 REFOSSESSED ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Dusring eurrent and price years, the Groap scquired a reol ssiste progeries sgains defauhed Tawarrug receivables. Tl
Cirvap engape independem valiees which ane scerediled by Saudi Authority for Accrediied aluers (TAQEEM) in
determine thi fér vakie, during U yaar the Groap engaged Olat Properiics Management (0P} and Moheer Al-Jaxrah
Coampany o delerming the i value,

Bielow s the nswierient i repossessed assers hekd Tor sale:

2024 222
5R SR
Balance at the beginning of the period 3629422 49,420,673
Mclidilinn during the year 252 0K 411,340
Sale duriig fhe period® (LG T T4 (21,203,545
Bexlame ot the eod ol the yeir 45,950,281 53,629.422

"The ssle nFrepossessed psmets held for sobe nesulied in realized goin oF 58 29 million {2022 58 1,2 million) presenied
in other income {nale 6.
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Muorabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NﬂTEE-m THE CONSQLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued }
31 Decembar Mi23

12 ISLAMIC FINANCING RECEIVABLES (eomtinaed)

Anabyats of credi quality of lslamic Anancing reccivables & as follows;

Rk 2022
Ry LY.+
Bezither most die mai” Impaired Td6,E51 495 65,037 056
Pass due bt mad imgrained RIS 430 250663, TOH
Pogg due sl imipaired DRE] LTI 939760, 6440
1027847 08 346597400

Managentent cloxsifies |sbamic fnancing receivibles thae are cleher nied vt due or stheirwise past dus b for W0 days or
less as ~performing™ whiks all recelvables thnt are post due for inore than S dayva ane clesified as “non-performiig ™.
Below 15 the breakabovn of perfarming and ros-performing Islamic foancing receivables:

23 a2
SR SR
Perfanming 1,128,335 934 941,720,764
Mom-perfanming GE1.734 G2 9, 4G
1, 12T 847 608 1034, 657 416
2034 ey 1
=R AR
Lol AR 528.007 41320, 1S
Man-cumeni 44,319 471 A, 405 3005
12T R47T 6568 | KR 697 [
Wbovemeen B the albowance T impainhen) saes werz s flloas;
SrdA Q22
SR A
AL tha beginning of the year 52814558 43, 554 A0S
Charge for the year 18 NG5 417 A A4 DT
W nllem=if 1 doring the vepr (3,707,737 |37, 220,y
Al the enad of the year ARSHE A58 52 H14.358

The Fallwing table shows reconciliations from thie opening (o the closing balance of the impairment allswonce For

Islamie finamcing receivahles.

FI Decender 2025

Bialance ot | lanuary 2024

Vramzler Froem stage 2 & 3 1o stape |
Transker from smpe | & 3 10wmope 2
ransier Frow scape 1 & 2 w sage 3
Charge for the yeor

Write-olfs

Mnlomee ps o 31 Dopember 2033

Lifetinne £CL  Lifeime ECL
ol crediy crely
12 rmumth ECL immprired impanired Tatard

R &R &R L1
[[R IR TAELTTI 35,387 446 S1H14.35R
GAR,TAT 1538.302) {0, M55 =
11 G5 186} 4493972 (AANER, THO) -
(17,253.741) 160 548) 17625, 289 -
9.000,816 13.760.5635 19,995,184 15,395,437
- - 139,707,737 {39, 07,737y
1LATETHT T 27240 19 844,051 SR E20SR

I



Morabaha Marina Financing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2013

12 ISLAMIC FINANCING RECEIVARLES {eantinmed)
Lifetime ELL

ol ey Liferime HEL
I December 2622 1 moarhy ECL |'|w|r.-er|:n'|£" el J'an:.lfn.'ql' Fesaf
b1 R T aR

Bealance at | fanwary 2022 I074,374 24,41, 5415 b, 15,60 3 43,564,409
Framafer from stage 2 & 3 i stape | LA 0AT (142,330) [ 20k T -
Tranater frvm stage | & 5 i stage 2 (1194 1,654} | %.0%5, 573 i, 153 5w =
Fransber from siage | & 26 stage 3 {13,571 864) [, TETH 13,578,631 -
Charge far the year 3400, 344 {36,902.213% 49,255, THT 46,449 891 &
Write-nlTy - . |37, R0 (37,220,048
Binlance a9 a1 31 Devember 2022 IERE{REY TAS1T7| 35, 15T 446 52,814,158

The terms and conditions, sd credit ridks pusocibed with tlse 1slamie lamcing receivables are diselosed in mole 29
Ihe fellowing wibke shows reconcilinticns fram the opening b the closing halonee of the gross oulstanding for

finmneings 1o cuglomers a1 wmortized cos

Liferime ECL
dteii crediy Lifeime ECL
12 moath EC], irmpatred crealy imipratred Toel
A Decewrher 2027 iR LT iR iR
Balanee of | Janusry 2023 RN 460,595 FA447.212 210,390, 240 15585 M4, 45
I'ransfer froa stage 2 & 3 to stage | (200,700,744 16T 857,960 JAA52, TR e
Transher from stage | & 5 e stape 2 3] UREH,O0E (X0, 4 852) RO030.847 -
Transler frum siage | & 2 o stage 3 117,185 4,158 4ol (4,271 0k -
Charge for the venr Ted0, L2110 L2100 82, 212.370 320,921,662
Wrile-olfs - = {TRE, 38081 (TAR, 138081
Brslareos as a1 3 December 2023 4,561,282 X401 4348010 2SI EI4 1 407626
Lifeesimne L Liferiare ECL
ey eredif crdain
£2 maath UL Tmypmaiped dnipsieived Testaal
3 Deveminir 2032 L ] R SR
Balance at | lameary 2022 UL AR ST 221051, 147 113084, 645 I,175 654 405
Transfer from stage 2 & 3 1w stage | (137,745 347) 1005, %27 GR0 51 90.6TT .
Tramsfer from stage | & 3 1o stage 2 (073, TA0.008) 117,351,530 S, 379,337
Transter frisn stage T 8% 2 1o stage 3 (RZ.0R3, [ TR {52, 1005, 441 5 | 74, 191, 5R3 .
Chasge for the vear ET R R {A0ETR069) | 136314, 165) [ 3R 518,367
Write=afis 2 x (54,868,717} [(SHBAR.72T)
Balonce as ab 31 December 2022 B33 440,593 Fil.447.212 235,240 1,355,304, (145

Amsignment of lalamic Mnancing receivables
The Group assipmed |slansic linancing receivubles as & cillateral sivouivting o SR SUEA T million 131 December 2022
ER Aok E 1 million) (e local commercial banks for shiaining borrowings,

Impsirmeat lsses on Lilamic fnancing receivables

M2 202

58 T
Provision for expected credin less allownnes (nel of reversal ) {25,395 437} FYLRE T 0
Reconveries againsl recuivables previousky written of 1,558,426 17.755.597
Metimpairmenl losses o Bskunic Anuscing receivables (3537 001) 1 2E & 3210

13
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 December 20123

13 FROFERTY AMD EQUIPAMENT

Tl estimarcd useful lives of the asseis for the caleulabion of deépreciation are as lollpivs:

Furnitare, equipment and computers
Licksehkadid improvement

gl
At the bepaming of the vear
Adkditions dusling the vear

Al the el of the vear

Avewnralated aépreciation
Al the beginiting ol the vear
Cliargiz o the vear

Ad i end ol the year

ey bovk apniy:
Al 31 December 2023

LaITH
Al s begimning of the yenr
Additions during the wear
Relate wr gexpsition of o subsidiony (Mo 14)

Al the end ol the vear
Avcarminilared depracianion:
Ad the beginiing of the year
Charge for the year
BLefEie wn a:quixitiun- ofa Whjidﬁ:l:l’ll- { Bl 143
Abthe end ol'the year

et book feraodnaty:
AL 1 December 2022

4 years

Shénter ol lease tenm dmd usefid hie

2023
Furaimire,
e el Foazeivald
CiRrI e el T T Fistarl
58 R SR
12058 500 i, a9, BEHE 18, TR AR
1.621,550 1,412,578 LA 1 IH
LE.681, 0140 THTL 464 21655600
05, B0 R LICHIL] 10601 HMp
2116, TG 651,578 2, TH% 344
9.921 5h6 4 ARR IR 14,400,174
N TREEA AR B5 T2 AM
2072
Frornarure,
Eipripaerl @ Leasehniad
CHAMPIRRTT At i Tt
LY S &1
5K 2E f L 2SR 11 SR 945
Lot S0 028 [ e
50 36T - SAERLART
el FLE R LT B T TOR AR
4. 280,026 J.2H.213 TAIT.IS
| A6 574 2RI 29109z
X ELy e - 253 30a
T RS RIKE A3.R36.030 116k | K30
4. 252 T IEIZES TishihEE

I8



Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 Decembser 20123

£ BUSINESS COMBINATHIN

Uit 1 Jusie 2032 the Company scguired B shares of [hghal Payments Conspany for Flesacial Technolopy, o limited
leability company regisiored and based in the Klagdom of Sawdi Arabia aml congaged (o bullding e webnology of
MRFmEns gelawny {azporegalion model ) ane pm'l.'idin!_ eleciromic wallel services qﬂa}lnn wille) im the: Kingdom of
saudi Arabin, The Company ocgoired Digitnd Payments Comgpany for Finonetal Techaclegy a3 i adds new prodicis o
the Giroup business i the Fabech mardke.

Asxets acquired and labilities assumed
The fair valves of identifizhie nssets and linhifitics of Dipial Paymenis Company for Fisncial Technology based on
ihe Purchase Price Allocation as af the date of séquisiiron wees!

I June 222
NE

Asuis
Cusrent and none-oirment assets
Property gt eqirlpment X, [0, M
Falal nssel aoguired A7, HI MM
Fisir valoe of idemtified nlangible ossels
Beanad and trademurk [naie | 5) 15, 1AM
Technmslogy Imoie (3 1000, D
Licemise { o 153 SE S0
Total identlficd limangihles &, 100 A
Total asticgs R, D10, 11D
Lss: Linbilities nscpmigd
Cuerrent nind moa-current liahilitics {10, 200000
e nEsELS T4, B0,
Monecantrilling lngres o 20% shareholding wensared ol fair valoe 114, 30 AL
Fair value of identifiable net nsseis acquived i, S0, D41y
The basgain purchose hr|ﬁ|r!|:' Trin 1l uL'nl.|u'rH.iIi-:|||. hats been recognined a5 [ollnws
Purchase consideration S, 100, (W
Liess: Fair voloe of identifiabde net assets soquined Ao, SN0 0
Burgnin punchinse { i b} (LR LRI
Wl cash nequired witl the subsid inry 935,40
Comsideralion paid (57, 1000, (i
MNel ensh Mow on aciguisition |54, 16a4,6600)

Iitinfly of the pcguisitien dabe, s Company necopnioed provssmal Coodwill of SR111 million which wis subjoci
ko finalizing the Purchase Price Allocation, Puring December 2022, dhe Purchase Price Allocation exercise was
cianpleted nnd a5 a resalt, Beand & Trodemark and License have Been identified and lak valesd ot 2K 15 milllion and
SR 35S million. respeciavedy. Technology has been fair valoed at 5B 1.1 million and the earmying valoe {Mel BFok
withue ) of Technology was SR B2 millior Consideration pakl of SR 571 milkion represents e considerntion of 5K 7.1
million paid 10 fonmer sharebadder ard SR 50 million eagh injected in subsbdiary o inerease the capiual of subsidiary
which resulted in equity stake of Morbsho Marins Finoneing Campany W inciesse te 80P

kL



Muorabaha Marma Financing Company
LA Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contirried)
31 December 2023

15 INTANGIRLE ASSETS

Thez estimpted wseful lives of the asseis for the coloulsison of amarnisation are as Toflows:

Sollware B vicars {20220 10 years)
Licensg 20 wears 2022 indefinlic
Brunsl and irudemark 20 yearg (2022 mdalinine)
223
Braud & Capltad work o
Saffware Liceise Tirirele ek s Tatul
SR SR MK Ry SR
Cnsie
Al the beginning of the vear 10,K81, 795 EA RMEDIG 5000 1007508 49,5 304
Additions during the vear RER. 231 = - 6 M29.421 TEET.HE2
I run=fers daring the vear MITEATT - - [R AL E et -
Al ks end ol the veir 1561 5048 X5, 506,000 1. 500,000 4.771,. M8 57,506,950
Acenmmilated ammdmrien:
Al the heginning of the year A 510, 10 - - - £.520.104
Charge for the ve 3136345 1,778,000 T, - 4.586,345
Al the cind of the year T A5G 449 1775, M TS, . 3,51 440
Nt lavk arioaiey:
Al 51 Deeember 2023 B 180,009 35,725, (Ml 1 25, M 4,771, MIE 48,080 5007
B o Cripiterd wreark iy
Seerane Livenss Fradenuart Pragress Fatarl
S AN AT L1 L&
LT R
Al the heginning of the vear TA4al,153 - - LA 8.180.457
Adlditions during the vear 124,443 + - 2,70 12 L EIER47
Translirs during the vear 1596 197 - - (250, 19T} =
Felare 10 busimess
viambinntion (nise 14} I LS S5 5000 0, SaH0, e = LE A EHIREIE
Ad the end ol ilve yoar 1I.B&1 705 33 SO0 1,30, 1017515 44 B4 304
Accamudvsed wsorrizario:
At the begliming of the year 3038307 - - - 36383597
Charge fur the yanr 17 . - - &R1,707
A the end of 1l year 4,500 104 - - - 4520104
War bk mmaunise
AL 2] December 2022 736140 3550000 I, SO0, 00 1,017,509 45,179,200

Capriral work bn progness as st yeor represents softwane upprade.

[ruring the year. the Ciroup remssessed the el Fife of software and changed the aeetul Bife froms D yeds o b yesrs
which resulied in increass in amorikeation b curest year by SR 14T million

During thve yeue, the Growp hos reassessed the aselul Hife of Lidens: and Brond & Trdermask ond deternined the life of
2 yenrs




Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES 10U THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contnued)
3 Deceniber 2021

I RIGHT OF USE ASSET AND LEASE LIARITIES

The Ciroaip have lease coigmets for varioos of lee spices. These bessics genemally have lease enms betwermn 2 and 5
yunre Setaut belov and the carrying smoomis of fzht=odeuse asseis recopnised and the movements during the vear!

2023 223
SR SR
Asad | Jongary L2546 4, 264,487
Additions 'l]IlIlI:I'IE v yenr 15,21 L0 [ R
Helate b hissiness combanation {mete 1) - J BGRAE]
Cepreciation expense (4.237.6063) [2,TTH.583)
A3 Deccmber 18,159,406 T.225 463
St ol beliaw dee ihe carrying amogints of Teass Habibities and the movemenls during (e vear:
22T LR
KR 5R
A the begimmimy, of the yeow 649,315 3,978 5
Aulditicns during b e 15,210,680 15695906
Rezlae to budiness combanagion {nole 143 - 2958 nd2
Accretion of interes 1,237,506 3524610
Payimesis dumng the vear (5575,175) (2,054, 0690
Al b el of the: year 17,523,342 049,315
Sez our bebaw is the hreak-up between corrent arsl non-ciment portien of lease Habilives,
223 Mz
R R
Cirrent 5, E43 Rbd 2279, 14D
=g 11, 3838.632 4,946,323
I8, 190490 1.225.462
The following s the amouts recogmised in satement of comprelensive inceme:
R X
R S
Depreciation expense ol right=ol=use nsseis A, 237663 2,778 283
Imlerest expense on lease Habilities 1,237,500 352460
EATE &0 3,331,343
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Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 Deepmlser M5

& ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHERS

223 M2

5K SR
Accoums payahle T.240,290 4430173
Employess’ Bimis Fayahble &, 170 2720013
Accrued speciol commission expense 4,300,324 15,356
Paynble to Nremcial instintien 1,773,266 2.661.043
Aevred expenss 1,850,712 1,743,253
Others 1246412 2570 HI%

13588023 [hBRT M0

Terms snd eonditions of the above Nnscial lohilities:
®  Accolimy pﬂ.:.‘ul'lh::i are tetrimerest bearing and ore memally seqtled on fdl=gay terme
® o Apermed a'p-:-:‘iul CornmisRion expenses dre normally seifled os ancd when the inginfmsent 15 paid

Arrugd :-'||'I-:|.'1II| LSRN expense relaies kb the IFH.'I'.'iilI CEHTMITH RS KT ng.;imi-l. borrowings aceriesd uniil the
yiear end,

9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The GI".:I'I.I[I' @ shareheldera, their alTiliates and ki management personnel are consilered as relafed parties of ke {aroigp,
By manmgemenl pevsonmsel of e Growp eomprise o key membess of the monagement having suthorigy and
respunsibility for planning. dirccting and comrolling the sctivities of the Grostpe [n the onfinary coase of Business. the
Ciroup enbers inlo transpctions with the reloied partics, which are based on mutually agreed prices and contraet lenms
approved by the Group’s maesgerien. Relabed pary bakinices @l vear-eisl anse in the morsal couras of hiasness,

Fallowing are the major related pamy irarsactions with key management personnel during the year,

el | 2622
Relmed pary Miraere of transaciion iR 1
Ky managament
pereonncl Short berm benefifs 9,145,590 4,308, 100
Lang termm bemsfits 1492473 B LR R
Larans prowided wing Esluomic finuncing - 2 G A0 a0
Hiaktial Public Oferioug (TR0 poosts incurred om bbbl
Shareholders of shnrehalders (#) 2R 11 437 B OH4 LA
Boand of Direcions Bosared of Dhirectors” remmumeratin EA25.040 1,455, (I
Below ore the bakanees recervables From related pariies o5 af year end:
BN mieiabaers amd
il commiitees member  Bslumic Anoncing receivablss 4,732,504 5.205 503

I} This amaount represents th TPy cost which was agreed 1o be reimbursed by the shareholders osce the TR0 s
completed ns dinng the vear the [P0 veas complicted the amount wis recoyvered,

q2



Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
3 December 2023

L] BORROAWIMNGS

[l table belfonshows the details of tie beerowings ebiained by the Groupe

2023 223
A Hank bomowings 363,868,700 L P52 R
[t} Hukuks payoble - B, 747,283
& Borrowlsgs froan b gavermmen entily TaTE 4T 202 085,631
443,541 M7 il 5,724,594
Lurrenl porsi 231952 1614 ik SR AL
Man=current paition 01,609,053 114,540,853
443,540 47 65,724,994
Al e twble belbow slioves te details o the bank Barrewinps ohiained hy the Ciraup,
i 222
SR A
Islmmie finniecing (2ee noies x" mmd B belosy) 50, TOR A5% A0A 30065
Leigt umamortieed upfrent charges (B30, TS0 (Rl 5T3)
305 R6E, O 0 752078
Lurrend porlian 177,258, T6T | s, 79, 5HS
Memscrment portion 186,500 13 DITAET 403
M0k B08, TOI 4, TELOTH

Islamnic financing shawn abeve ncludes:

ul The balwrce of thireen (30 December 2022 Gifleen) revolving Eslamic Bailities for n wiol ansont of S8 326003
milfion 431 December 2022: SR 6K.5 millicn ) a5 of 31 December 2023 betveen 3.0%% (o 3.5% + SHWOR. Each of
these facilitics iz for an original werm of quartery and renesable for edditional periods of meother quors each al
the lender™s oplion up o o sisl of 4 yesrs snd carry special commission at Aoatiing comimercial rates, The facilities
are secured by assipnment +F receivables. The oplion 1o relinaace o moll over the fcilities is st the lender’s
discralion

h

The balance of thres (3] December 20220 (v ather Islamic feilities for o ioal amoont of S8 370 millian (31
Crecembier 20222 58 36,3 million) o5 of 31 December 2023 obiained from commerceal banks in finance the 1=lamic

fimpnecing assets of the Group ot o rate of nberes from 3.0% 10 3,5%. The facilities are secured by nssignment of
receivables and are repaysble on o mathly and quanerly hisis over 48 insealimens.

ch Dharing the year, the Group ohtained pew byrawings amounting se SR337 milllon 3 December 2022 SR 270
il i) Froen & local hank, the loan carries commission averge mie of 4.62% and is to be repayuble by April 2027,
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Muorabaha Marina Financing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 5 TATEMEN IS {Contmued )
31 Drecemiber 2023

9 BORROWINGS (continued)

] Thie mabde below shivws the details o the sukuks payable issued by the Laroaip

2023 M2
SR S
Islamic finarsiice theough Sukuks - LRLERTIEH
Lass; unamortized upfrm) charess - {112.715)
- B.7R7.245
C'urreni poriion = K. 727.2H5

In February 2078, the Group izued Sukuk wills on aggoegaie principol of S8 178 million, The Sukuk comy @ fsed rake
o iterest at 8% par annum due For setilement on s quariery basls. The Sukuk's peincipal 2 due i be repaid i gusnecly
Instatments commencing from day 2EEE with the finad sstabment due m Pehruane 3H23,

I Deceimber 2019, ihe Group sued @ new Sukuk with an ageregote principal of 531 80 million, The Sukok camy 8
fixed mibe of inberest 5T6% per annum due for settlement on o quanerly basis, The Subuk’s priveipal is dus 1o be repaid
in quariers nsadments commeneing Fom March 320 with the Tinal insiofment doe in Decomber 2022,

Bedh ihe Sukuks dre secured by psgpament of Islamic finaneing receivables,

3 The tnble below st the details ol the lnoms obisinad by the Growp from a gevemament enrity:

e M2
LY hT
Clirent purtfon B4 673,247 120 302 272
Mon=currem peatian 28 0, a0 T HES 350

TLETI24T 202 1E5.631

During Cciober 20210 the Sroup recsived loan from the Seciol Development Bank (govemment entite ) ammiming b
SR M iillion. The ko are nepayable in montbly instalmens commenciig: from Jomuary 2022, with the Gl
mslalmenl dug i Decemnber W14,

Drariog 2021 anel 2022, the Group panicipated in fanding foe kending program by SAMA and received Tumding in 21
instalmenis sl of SR 290 million fuidiig from SARMA which is inlerest fres fonding with varving maturitics. stariing
from March 2027 to Seplember B2,

Ihe above foans received by the Group fram a Seciol Developmant Bank corrics specinl comemision ol mbes
sigrificantly lover than the eurrently prevailing market rates while the loan received from SAMA is inlerest free. These
Ioans parory ik o 1e Cimoip curey oumber of conditions, one of which is that 1hese loans are i be waed for proviiling
luans 10 specific pypessecions of customers ot diseousted rates, The benefin beivg the impact of the “lower thon markel
vilue™ or “inberest free” hoars obtatned by the Group hod been sdentified amd accounted for ns “govemment gront™ asd
has fnitially been recorded as deferred income wnd classified within “accounts pavables, scoruals and others™. Sech
heneTil is being recogmized in staemenl of comprehensive ineome of the Group on n systematic brss s the axpense,
tor whech such grun is inlended o compensaie

14



Morabaha Marina Financing Company

!.-“l Saudi Juin'_[ _ﬁ_iggllca_yilrnpmly} -
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS (Continued)
31 December 2023

1 BOHROWINGS jcontinweil)

Furiler, -Jurln|_1 HE2 ) and 2022 ke Ciraup cdhiaines] bours frem Socinl f]-n:u:ln[rnml_ Hank smommbing Lo SE 300 million
ok the prevaling market mies of 2.32%% 60 3. 50% per nnemam. The mabarity of the loans saning from June 2023 10 May
i,

Fair valee of devivatlve

The Compaiy s aopeeed in profit mfe swap agreements with o ineal honks for nodinal smount of S 142 million (31
Drecember 20622 SR 211 million), The changs m fair valse of those commission rates that are not designed in bedge
relaticnships, bt are, nevenbeles, inended o sedwos ibe level of commission mde risk, As gl 3 December 2123, the
iy value ol the derivative instoament o8 FYTPL anssunted to SR 2.8 midliion (31 December 20622: 5B 3.3 million),

[ Fair value hierarchy for derivatives net dedpnnted os hedging insieomes for dischosdre purpase is in kevel 2, with
stgmificant inputs being direetly o indirectly olservable.

ik EMPLOY EES® DEFINED BEXEFIT LIABILITIES

[he Girsup operates an End ol Service Henefilt Plan for its empboyess bassd on e prevailing Saodi Labor Laws.
Aecrunks are made in accordancs with the actearial valestson mder prajected unit credit meibod while the bene i
paymiems bl gaion is dischorped as and when @ Galks due

Ihe Follonwimg tablcs summares e componenis of emplovees” defined benefit Fobilities recopnised in the stabement
ol comprehensive incomie snd stsement of financial pasition

it} Anriarmd recegnised in the statemens af vl posifon:

2023 202z
SH 58
Present value of employvecs” defined benedit [eshilities 6,256,561 5500714
iy Benefit expense frecognived fa statemeit of comprelfressive ncame)!
S0 2022
5R kT
Cunmenl sarvice cosl 1148414 2475.354
Irderest expenss 243,60 147,446
Benslil expense 1LXIATH 2622 R0
ol Mavereni fn the prevest valve of emplopees ' deflmed beaeflt Robilivie:
o2y 027
iR 5B
Present value of employees” defined benefit Huhifities b beginming of the year LB L A [ 4. 145,205
Charge recagmingd D1 Sfaieiigar 1|.I'.._-|;.-.:-,-I|;:-,-;¢'.||-¢-,r|_n'-.-¢- Tcomme
Curremd serviee cost 1148418 1475554
Inbemssl expemse Zeh A, IHald 17446
Actmrial gain recapniaed mothe sialement of olher comprehemsive incame [ 179, 480) (1,330,643
Benefits grasd (355, 145) (136,672)
Present volue of employiess” delined benelit linhilities o0 end of the veor i, 256,801 539,76
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Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1l December X023

My EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITUES (comfanued )

aly Primcipol actuario! esxanmpiens:

Key assamptions used In the actuarial valuaion:

23 2023
5K iR
[Hseount rate 550%, 5.57%
Salary prowwih rote 5.50% A4.07
Melfensent age |visss) el fill
Plap doration i vearsk 1 X
hietaliy rawe A1967-Th SAlE—T5%

i) Sevanitivily vyt
Aoqualidative sensilivily malysis for significant sssummisns is as shown,

A Decenther MNI7 fpact wir defimed benef® olfipation — frorease £ (decremse)
Champe in frererse fn Devrease in
Base Scemarie ASTIRR AT AT ITERMRAT
Dhizount rare += 5 hasis prints 617,335 (7ML
Expecled mte of salary increuse +- & bagls points B2 I {113,209
Withdrawal rate - [0 bnsis points 147,628 {162,138)
Lile expociancy = | year 1,432 i L1364
21 Dhecemher N072 fupreyt cop defimed il ofWigatio - increese o fdeoremsel
Clarege in dcraree i Dheereake
Bove Soeiprio XM ANRLMI O CFTNNUTER
Cragount e = 5] hasis points 7118 {204.355)
Expeetid mle of salzry increase == Fii hpeis |'u_'|in1:.' ML 348 | I KT ERd)
Wilhdmwal rafe = JENE baizsls points {68 A1) LA
Lif expectancy = | yeur 238 (2174}

Me mos el actuanal valoabion wee performed by om independent, ql:u.]iﬁl.:l,l nebuary “Crlohal Advisory™ using the

projeched unit eredit methis], The Actudry i eensed Froon the “Felkbw ol Secicty of Actsaries, 17547,

The expected madierity pnalysis of urdiscaunted :rnpln:.u:e-:“' defined herefit linhilities is a5 follnn= (lime in venrs)

2o2F ez

b AR
Withim tbe next 12 manshs (ext aomoal repoming peried) 2516542 LER4TIE
Between | and 2 years 2,721,652 23458101
Mebween 2 and 5 vears 1,900,716 1. 242,501
Bewvoed 3 venrs 8,176,241 7507, T4
Total expected payvmes 15.376,551 LA 040,248
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b AN Rl e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2023

4] SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital i divided mta 718 ebllien ghanes (11 December 2023 50 girllion daanes) of S8 10 each.

AT December 21 December
2023 222
&R &R
Fourgling sharehalders 42507 T AR, SET TN
Pushlic 214,285, 7H) -
Treasury shares A 1, (302, 300
T4, 285,741 S I A0

ihe trewsuny. shmres are held by 1he Gnmp For the PUrpEs ol l_-';1||.|;|-hy:'¢4:.-g|. releiniion [RLEE ] whitch will be ksiimched in
b comding period.

As 0 resilt of 1PO imote | ) the Conpany isswed 21428 572 mew shanes atan offer price of 511406, The ditferantial
prece over the il value recornded as share premivm gmeinting 1o SR 64,34 million, afier pifsetdng the isuance
ot amiumting te SHE 3426 million, The hegal Pormadities of apdating the Compsing s commercial registrtion s
Company's fy=lows are compleled,

I STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Campanies” By-Lows, the Company mus et aside 100 of s meoiks glier zokar I each vear (o
Staruiwy. reserve untll it bas baill up & resenye :qlnl by 30%5 o [he share |:.'.||1-'i|u]. The reserve is md available For
diginmhislion.

i EARNMINGS PER SHARE

Fhee bezsic and diluged enrmings per shore (EPS) have been compailed by dividing net income (e the venr by the weighbed

averape number of shares sotstanding durieg the yisie.

A6 Decamber 3] December
2 2
iR AR
Met incomne for the vear J6RET B4 R 5D, S0
Weaghted avernge numnlbsesr of shares for bassc aid dilsied E1%5 ol 250,724 43 548, 4T
Bacic ond dilisted earmings per share L] (i)
24 FAKAT
{ Trarrge for e pear
The movemen in the snkal proviston for the vepr was as follows:
2nar il
iR h13
Al the beginning of ihe year 9628804 700,512
Chage for the year 00953 9514233
Pald during the vear 9,103, 7%7) (6.5TR1)
AL the end of the year 0,442 980 Bnis R0
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NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cominued)
31 December 2023

M FAKAT {eonfinwed)

St of oxsovsanvnis

Mereabalie Warime Finaacing Company

The Company. has fled i1s wakal retoms with the Zakel, Tax ol Custorms Ambocily (-ZATCAT Ror all previows vears
i i 200, The Compuy hind obtalned s Dol skt ssesaments for all the veors unbl 2007, while the psesmenis
for the vears from 2008 10 20232 gre sl snder review by ZATOA,

Digital Payments Company fer Fimnneipl Technolopy

I'he Cantipany has filed its 2kt resurns with ZATCA Foe all previons years up oo 2022, which i yet to be reviewsid by
LATCA,

1z MVIDENDS

The Company’s exiruordinary genernl ossenbly In their meeting eld on 27 suguss 2023, approved disiribstion of
mterim cosh dividends of SR 033 per skhare wolaling (o SE 37,004, 740

b FARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

Firsnuial Infoemetion of subsidiney tht huve material non-coniralling aterest s provided below:

Propartion of equaty mterest hekl by non-conarodling interess:

N l_"mm_;r of fwcwrparativn aid
(P et 023 01z
Cripeiad Paymemis Comipany for Financial
Technalogy [Laop) Kingdom ol Sowli Avalsia {138 il
RIEES 2l 2
&R SR
et Loz allscoled o nem-contrelling ntenesd {BA5H 500 [LA2H.442)
Met eomprelwngivg luss allocated to non=controdling interesi {5.680,539) {240 100

The swmmazized financial information of subsidiary is providsd below, This informaticn is based on necosinds before
iI'|1.|.'Hl.'l|I:|}m.r'|_-, climinaliom

Summarised stntement of comprehensive lnss for 2022 and 2023

Fyir I

5R AR
Hevenoe s =
Bank chorges (B2, 710p {636,557}
Crzncral & Admimsiralive expenses (20T 08 (T E2 20
Lass Frum eperatinns [28. 865 31K) (R L L E Y
Ohher Ineome THG, 141 Thd, 2
L.oss before zakat (28,079,149 (9RL. 903 )
Fakot (P RELTH (1572405
Ml loss Tor the year (28,292 5010} (2211
Actunrinl loss on remensureitent of employees” delined benelil lizbilities {10, 19) (59433}
Mel comiprehensive lass (2800, 0008 (1200 G4
Met hoss arimbucshle 10 WO 15058 500 | 2028.442)
HMet Comeprelensive beas giributable o WCL {S.6HID339) [ 2ARb. 32 4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

31 December 2023
14 PARTLY-DWNED SUBSIDIAKY {eontineed)

Summarised siatement of oancial position 25 a8 51 Decemler:

Cush ol cash equivalénts
Prepavmends and milwer assels

Hight ol e asset

Infnngible maets

Progeny ard equipenen

Accounts pavable and aecnied expenses
Provision for zakal

Luase linbiliy

Emplovess serminal beselis

Total Equity

Allribmiable to:
Loquity hodders of parsn
Mani=conirolling inlcnes

Smmmarised cash Now information For yenr ended 2] December:

Uperaiang nclivities
fnvesting acliyiles
Firancing nctivitics
Met Increase in cosh wml codh equivabents

Jo2d
iR

3,195,963
6, ¥ 524
11,50, T4
10,476,382
1. 1394131
{15,807 554)
(213405)
(12,30 1670)
(393,704)
(6.0145,286)

(48302 1)
(1200 056)

i

(2851 6,081)
{4,004, T18)
2011320
[23.40947%)

49

222
AR

2, 55440
LATRER
A TRIOE4
G311 A2
2550466

(6 2T0T 1)
(157,244
1292822y
(271.558)

34 446,983

2T.557. 5810
O R 9T

M

i3 451,0349)
13249076
ALY
25730, 102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
31 December 2023

7 CAMITAL MANAGEMENT

The Gieoup's podicy 15 1o mntin o strong capitsl base @ mainoin erediver amd market confidence ond o sstain fdure
developnest of the business, Monsgameni ponitors e reiam o copdial s well a5 il kevel of dividends so ordinon
sharcholders, The Group's objectives lor managing copilal ane o safeguand the entity s ability 10 continse s o going
wiHbeern, S0t i can continue 1o privvide retums for shareholders ond benelits for oher sinkcholders and o provide
am aclegquinte redun bo shamehelders by priciig the sercices commesarpely with the level of risk

[z pransary ohiective of the Group's capionl menageament 13 o maximise the shorebalder valoe.
[hiet Girvsp munages ds capiiol sirugiune snd makes sdjusinents in lght of dhanges in deonomie conditons. The Group

mformalty mapicer copital usng o pearing miis, which is “net debs” divided by sotal capitnl plus net debt. The Group
inghudes within net debl short serm loms, trnde ond oiber pavables, less cash and bank balanes,

Joxt Jaxd

SR Rt
Avcounts pavable, secrubs angd athers 13,588,023 16887940
Provisizi for zaba D A45540 QAR HO
Bartowings FEERTIN " i BAT2.99]
Lense laahilities 17523342 G i35
Emiplovees' defined benefd lahilifies 0,250,561 2399706
Liss: Mank balinces ond cash {90,937 97H) (G AISDLT)
Mt debi AU, 414,835 Sl nfE TSR
Equity H42.2131,R05 F69.485427
Capitsl nnd net debt 1. 254,647 640 1,E54, 148195
Crenring radin d3% il%

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALLUE
Fimancial instrirments comprize Nisncial asset wsd Grancaal labilites.

Firancial assets consist of cash and cash eguivalems, restricied cash deposils, Islamic linancing receivelies, Investmens
al foir valoe imvesiment theoweh OCLand othes recedvahles, Financial lighilfties consisi of horrosvings, oceounds poyabie

nd sthers,

Fatr value higraechy
The Girnap uses the ﬁlll-.'ﬂ-'ang. |I|l:':'.|.'l'l.'1lr far chetermining 2md dizcloging the fudr value of financial msiruments by
wibuntivon sechniguss:




Morabaha Marma Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED F[NAN{TL"'-.-I..- STATEMENTS [ Continued)
31 Decemnber 2023

IR FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR Y ALUE jcontinued j
Foir warlie Wilerercli) (comiimeil

Leved U quoted Comadjused ) prives in sctive markers for identical assets or Habilites

Laved 20 ather rechnigues for which all inpus whick have o signilicons elfect an il recordad Tair valie see observable.
imher directly or indirectly

Leved 37 weehabgues which ose enputs which have a significam elflect on the recorded fair vobue that are nim based on
ohseryable markel data

Following bk indicsies [air viloe level hierarchy of the fnanced instruments of the Groap. lamic finnncing
receivahles, imvesiment ad FVOUT and bomowings are elassiled within level 3 of the fair valee hisrarchy while the rest
of ihe fimancial assels apd Doanciol labdlsises ivgleded m e behow fable are clagziled within level 2 of the Gir value
lierarchy, Mamagement believes that the fiir vakue of the fimancial asseis ol ehilities incloded in ke tble below o
the reporting date, approsimate their corry g valsss-mainky die toche short matuoibes of mist of these Nnancial nsseds
ond liabikites

202y 22
&R AR
i in sy
Cash and cash eguivalents AL,%37.078 Ao ELOL
Resiricied cosh depasits 1, DAY 1O R
Oiher assets {excluding speclal commisslon reeelvable) Td8e012 K. 365582
Fiwraedod Nabifivhes
Aoy ray ables, pccruais and wibers teaciuding aecroed spocial
COMiSENIn erpenae) 19, IHT 656 G TeE RO

For asséts amd lahaliises thei ere rﬂ;l:-ﬂl‘liﬁ:;ﬂ al fir values in tbe consalidaied fimancial sinemenis on 2 focurming Ihasis,
the Growp determines whether ransfers have oceurned between levels in the hicrarchy by re-pssessing colegorization
thasid on e lowest deve lmpal that i signilicar b the G value measurement as a whiole) anibe amd of eicl seporting
peringl.

For the purpose of Fir vales dischesures, (he Group has deéerming] closses of pssets ind Habilities oo the basis of the
tuire, chorneleristbes avad risks of e asset oo lab€liy amd the level of the Gic valug hlcearchy as exploined obove

The Growp™s munogement deteomines the podicies amd procedures for beth reeurring fir valve measurement, and lor
BE=recirmng msisuremenl

Chere have bevn o tmnsfers 1o amd from Lavel 2 and 3 during the current sl prior vear.

Firle varlive wf the Felame fiaenciag recervalde (acleding special comprissdan recshmhle)

i A i A ) 2k e
Carrying Fuir ey Fin
vl witliie wirfive valug
SR 5K Al Sk
5 ! 2rr
Eelamie Mnnciig receivible 1,089, 345610 1,138.228,137 WEl.EHI.05Z  1,050,054.57

Fur determinatiion of the fair value of 1slamic financing recgivahles, manngemenl assessis e imarket tnder the cuwrpent
coenditions. and assesses the prodit raecs thm the Qroup could obsain against its comenl portfdio, The pertfolio s
sepregated mee various categorkes The peolil rades ovier (o e 3 yoars have boeen gssessed and ussd as a hose For the
discount rate relating we the voluation of the portfolio, Premivms hove then been pckded 1o goach cabegory based on ihe
prevalling eeonomic eanditsors in the country, Tl presiinss move froomn S0 basis poings o 250 basis pents,
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR WALUE (contineed)

The miial base rate, beloee pesmdins wend galeulited uging the nverage quioted mie sgainst contracts Tor Lhe lasg §
wenrs, This quaoted rile was compared i the iverage effective vield thot the comracts generaie o derive ihe focter o
Eramslibe the quoted rate ool effective rate fnoorder b 1B the base m@ite from o guated mse 10 an cffceiive rae, The
IVErRge al the quoded raie for the Cerowp’s portfalie over this 11¢rid;||:| was |4, 300 (2022 14 06%), and 1he average
elfective rte For this same portfolio was 14,30 %% (2022 13979, reaulting ina W0 Bector of 0,989 (2022 (.74,

Erexrmed premiam for cach calegosy has been added i the base quoted e, and (s B foeior was applisd e arive at
the effective yield swhich wos ased o860 prosy discomil raig g fEir value the portfolio.

It cash Dews af each entegory were discantod using e proxy discount rate applicable o cach ctegory o arrive ol
the fair value of the portlulio, Provision corried against the portfolie was then deducted to compane the carrying value
lir the docimed Gur valise,

The diseonnl rades nsed range From TLEO% 100 BGRDS (2022 14.35% w0 15.805),

Falr vaine of Berroeings (ineludfng oeered speeied commiesion gxpenvel!

e lisir valwe of bank borrowings, sukuk pasable and government koans is based on discounted volue of expected
Mitwire cash fows wsing ibe applicable market rbes for similor types of instriment os of reporting date, The table below
shows the faer value of bank bormwings as o1 2023 and 2001, respeetively.

2028 27
2023 Fafr 23 Fair
Curplig value valiie Carviiag varlig vali
AR SR i LT} 4
Huank: Borriyinges Je ) 868, T 378, TO4,857 404752078 24272204
Sikuk pavalile - - B.787,.283 LR AT
Loams e & poserniment cly 678,247 A0 3RmA23 202 185431 208632, 199

Fair Value of fevesiment af FEOCT
Manngernent believes bt e Taie vibue of eestiment at FYOCT apprasimmiess iy enrrying value,

i) SEGMENT INFORMATION

I Ciroup objective is o provide finanging Tor Retails & SME s, The Groug has onby ooc geographical sepment and
il opernicsin the Kingdom of Suwds Arbin. Al ssets, linbifities and operations as refbecied inhe sistemeni of fnamcinl
positice and statement of camprehensive income belongs o the Feeall & ShE s sepment. For masagemenl porposes,
the Girodip is srpanisad ime the Fallowing primary husiness sepments

Retaid
These repeezeins faancing prothicts grumled o individwals” customers,

SMEs
Phese repeesents finance produets prsted to small and medivm sized basicases (SMEs)

Dhgital payments
These represents electronle commeree payvnbents { Ranan) and providing electronic walled services

Hend office
Head office is respomsitibe for maikging ke surplos liguidity of the Group through short e markeet placements, Bt
also provides suppen services 10 the hisiness Tt
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n SEGMENT INFORMATION {contimued)

Statemeeunt of coimprelemidve fncomn

A Beppmder 2030

Ineomic

Expemnss

Allowiires Lior expocted credil losses
Fakal

Repment prodil

AT Deceanher 2022

Ineonue

Expense

Al ance for cxpected cralil lsses
Fakat

Bepmuent profil

Seatermeent af fivomctal position

IF December 26021
Tional assers
Tenal Niabilities

A Perember 2022
Toinl asseis
Tontad Linlsilities

Rerai
Sk

406, 20%
165,862, 102}
{21.5810,402)
i4,985,367)
17,637,338

47,190, 130
(48,243 910
(23,087 HAY)

[, 45T}

18517865

HEE01T RS

254,236,720

SO K
Bi2A0%,625

A FINANCLAL RISK MANAGENMENT

EWES
R

G5 9TH 00T
{40,041 D66
19444, 3910
ATI2,115)
0664 5T S

AL IR AT
(35,922, 530y
LR R
(4,416,52H)
25081

454,328,523

149, 305,224

438, 236,735
il nl T

Heard affice
5

10,767 404

06704

12500867

12,507,867
TI5 660,143
37004402

20760176
BIZHLIT

Digivad
Parment Totind
s 1

TEG 141 18690541
(28,494,734)  (143,397.902)
- (333000
(213451} (8910933}
(27521044 J 147 575

TR d0 ITARE AT

{ TOLRAIE, A9 (S U5,
= [ XRAGEIZT)

(D57, 248} (9. 50237
(000 RIELATN

TSGR 1ML SREAIR
T T 10465 501,352,813

4. 203TT6 LI23TRT.I00
AR 654,297 Tal

Fhe Ciraup’s sctivilies expose i1 e g variety of financial rigks: market risk inclsding speelal commission mte rizk ond
Ferergm currenicy risk ) enedit risk and liquidiey fisk. The Oroup’s oversll sk managensanl progean: foeuses on U
impredictahiliny of fismcial markets and seeks o minimize potentiol nfverse effects on dbe Group's: financinl
perfirnsance. Risk imanagemend is carriad out by marmgement. | msos) smpaorant oy pes of fisk ore summarksed below.

Crealls mivk

Credit risk is e risk that one party 1ooa Anancial instrum et will fail o dischanee anobleation ond will cause e oller
party 1o h:u:ur' a Finorbeial locs, The Group secks fo manaps its credit visk with respect to customers by seeting credit
lirntts Fosr individunl costomiers and by monitoring sustending reccivable,

Phiz Cirerag’s s imum exposure te credis risk ot the reporting date i3 the carrying valee of coch class of Tinmeal assets

ns disclosed in the whle below,

Cash arkl cash eguivakents
Restricted cash depos

I=daimie Noancing receivahles, net
[Xher assein

2024 a2z

AR AR
41,93T7,47R ik G34.01 1
i, Do, DA 16, 00, EEKD

1089, 345,610 SHILHE1.052

7,486,913 R.360.502

1204, 740,500 | OTERI1 645
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H FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (continued)

Crellt queality analyss
The Bllowing fuble sets our Infommation about the credil guality of skemic Annncing reccivables measured at aifustized
col:
223 2022
5 AR
Meither pasi due nor lmpalred TAG A A5 AREET 056
Past il Beil not impszired:
From § dey 80 M days I 002,764 i 14
Frome 31 day 10000 Eays TOA0ETI IR E
Pl due sangd 'u'npuir..-d QU ENl.734 G2 UTh AT
L IET.B4T 008 1,034.6%7 410
it Girass crorrying vilive af Folaric flrawcing receivrile before ECL
Lite s B Likentose ECL
aread everdit et
§2 mrh 87T ST Jimgriovdd Tt
58 5K SR b
31 Decem ber 2023 G S E5S 207 B0, M5 IS 09508 1027 847 608
31 Decermber 2022 [ o e 201 Hx5, 651 1L 102516 10346597 410
) Allowangs for ECL
Life e RO Lifeniwe EC
i crwdid el
12 et BT imlr.l,-:n'mf uulr:q.l.nni Fionl
5 Al SR AR
A1 December 2023 I ATH, 7o T2 TLIAT 20,844,053 JH.500 154
3 Decenvher 2022 LR B TAS3TTI 35,352 446 E2 804358

Amapaits avizieg franr SUL — Sigrificont sacreare i ceeail sk

When detenmining whether the rid of delsubl on a fndncial nstrament has inereased significantly sinee initial
recognition, the Group constders reasoanble and supponable isfoemagion that # neleyvond and ovailable withos undee
s of elfort, This mnebudes bolh yuistitative el guolitsaive infarmation and ll'|5.|_:|-"§i1.| hinsex] an ke I:_i-ﬂ'u,:p-'s lsisgoricnd
expericnce and expar eredi nssessment and including focvard-looking miormotion. The abjective of the dssessment is
o ety whether a signilcam increase in oredin isk bas eocurred Tor an exposiere based on approved stages af crikaria
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A0 FINANCIAL BISK MANAGEMENT {comtinued)

Credli alsk prwdies

The Crroup oblocanes dacls exposane o credil risk prade besed on o varety of datn that is determined 1o be prodictive
off Uhe rigk of default ore applving experienosd credit judgment. Credit risk prades ore defined using qualitative ard
speantitative Facdors that are mdicative of risk of defaudl, Thess fctors vory depending an the meiere of the exposure
and thve type OF barmovwer

Cradit righ grades are dediived and calibrated sach thet the risk of default ocewring ingrenses exponentially ns the credit
cish diteriarates 50, for exomple, the differemes I rsk of defash beowees credit dsk grades | amd 2 i smaller than the
differenss betvween crodi risk grdes 2 ond 3

ith Crenrm v 1 et steecinre of P10

Creit nisk prades aee m primary inpet into the delermination of the lerm siricture of PD for exposures, The Group
collects perfonmange and dedialt mformanion ol i3 coedin risk exposares analysed By type ol proaduct and Boirower
oz well as by credin flsk prading.

e G enyprhizy s slatisiceal maode s b analy s the daia collecied and gencraie esimates of the remaming lifeiine P
il e poriures and how thes: ore expeied to chmitge as a result of the passoge of ime.

[his woalvsts inchades the identifieation end colibration of nelotienships bemeen changes in defilt imies ol macm-
econgmic (aetors inglode GUOE pros e, benchimarnk inserest ralss, msanployment gle.

Pased on external actual nivl fenssst mlfonmntion, the Group Gmmalakss o hase cass vies' ol e Tatare direction of
redevant ecomamie varkabics as well as a represenlutive mmge ol ather possible forecnst scenaros [see discimssion below
an incorpovation of forwurd-lowking infonmation). The Croup then wses thess fareeasis 1o adjust s estimases of PDs

i Uhefermririmgr wheder oot ek T focreased s Reasen'n
The crileria for defermining whether eredit risk bas iesessed signflcantdy inclsle quasiialive chafgess i POS and
gualiestive factors, incloding o bocksiop based on delinguengy,

The eredie risk of o pambenlar exposure is deemed 10 hove incrensed spmificangly since mitinl cecogmition, which is
deterinined under hasis ol Ciroup™ s siaging griderin.

Ling its expert credil judgment ool where possible, relevans hisiorcal experienss, the Group may detenmane bt on
cupusure hiss undengone a sipoilicant ncrease i enddit risk based on particelur gualfative mdicaters thal i@ considers
ore mdicative ol sich and whose effed may nat atherwiss be fully reflesied in ies quaniitative analysis on a timely
i,

Az o bockstop, the Gronp comsiders that o sipnilicant icremse in cradic risk ocours 0o L than when an asset s o
thian Mb days pest due. Days pest due ore denmmed by counding 1be number of dins singe the earliest elspued due cale
i respect of which Tull payment has nat been received. Dhie dates are determined willout considering any prace period
thad might he available toothe Bomower

The Ciroup monitors the effectivensss of the critena wsed v ddentify signilicant wwrees m eredat nish by regular
reviews o confin that:

= The eriers pre capable of sewulving signiifcamt iscreases in enedit visk beboee moexposire s in detao;

®  The critera do oot align wilh e podng e when @n agset beeomes W days pasa dues ard

= There s no anwarrosed volaility i los alloswanee fam insslon benveen [ 2-month PO sgaee 1) and lifdbme
P {stage 3.
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Hl FINARCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT {continued)
Credlit rivk prades femmlousd

B Hlefermining wieder credi rist bas fecreased significanly feonimsed)
Ihe Cerosap clossifles 08 Mnancil insfaments nki dage |, stage 2 and sioge 3. hosed o the i'ppl:'lml tmpirmeni
mellsndolopy, as described below; -

Sage 1: for Nesnclal Insiruments whens there has oo been o signiffcast ingrense in credit rid since iniial recognition
anil that we mid credigsimpaired on origination, tie Group recsenises an allowance besed an the [2-month BCL, All
accounts gl srigination wiald e clesilied as Stage 1,

Seage 20 Tor linancial insnamsnis whene (hers has boen & significant merease in credit risk since inilial recagnition b
thiy are md credit-impaired, the Ciroup recogaises an-ollowance For the Bfetime ECL for oll finandings csegarized in
this singe bazed on the aclual fespected hebnyvioral mitority profile including resirucharing or sescheduling of Facilities.
Steee ¥ for credit-impaired financiol irsruments, the Group recognises the Fifetime ECL Default idemtification
process Le, DPCof 121 o inoee 1s assiunsed 3o he sioge 3,

o} Moo (et aveers

e contractunl erms of finoneing receivables may be modified Gor a number of reasans, including changing marke
comdilimns, cusaonizr reteitian e otier fuctors oot releted (o 0 current or peential eredit detesiomion of the cusbomer,
An exising imociog receivable whese terms bave been modificd may be devecoprised and the reeegotined amaouam
focagnised axa new fimancing recsivable al falr valoe in socardance with the Group's scoomting podicy,

Wihen e werms of o (oaneial agsed are modifed sl e deodifictbon does mst nesall in desrecognitionn, the
determination of whellser theaszel’s oredil rizk ks mereased sipnificantly is completed on the bagis of he approved

saging criteria.

The Group mxy renegotime lrencing recesvables wocumomers o Onanclal difeihbes (reborred woos Torbearaice
getlvities’) in maximize collection oppartunities and minamize the risk of default. Under the Group's palicy. Financing
receivables” forbscaranee is granted an a selective basis i the debewr & currently in defalt oa s debt or if there §s a
Bigh risk of defaule there i evidence that the debsor made all reagonoble efTorts 16 pay under the original contraciusl
terms urel the debtor ks expecicd 1o be oble b meel she revised erms,

The revised terms usieally nclude extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest poymenss o amending odhwer
terps of fimaneing.

Forbearance is a qualiative indicator of u significant inorease in credil risk, and an expectation of forbuseance muay
canstitue evidence thal an exposure s credit-impasred s delauh, A customer needs (o demonstrale consistently good
puyiment hehavior over a period of 12 months hefore the exposune is no lonper consderad o be credit-limpaiesd! in
iefli.

oi Defienitiene of Phefamdi'
A defauli is considered o have ocewned wilh regard W o particular ohlipor when gither or hsth of the two following
events have lken place:

*  Iheubligar is pad due for 90 days or more on any credit ohligations to the Group including principal instalmenits
ani interest paymciss

* The Group considers thal the abligor is unlikely 10 pay is erad il ol gations o1 Ceowp in fll, withoul recourse
by i Citowp i solions such s realizing sscurily (F amy )

The definition of defwli krgefy aligns with that applied By the Groap Tar regulatory enpilal pumoses.

& deig i proraiton o forward Foking fefarwaion

The Group incorporaies forvward-locking infonnation into otk igs pssessment of whether s credit risk of ai imsnameis
has increased significamly since is inivial recognition ond its messrenient of ECL. Based on consideration ofa voristy
of external actual and forecast informution from published sources, the Ciroup formulates a forwand looking adjusment
U PLY term structires to arrive af Forward looking PI estimates across the lifziime uzing macroeconemde madels.
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Hi FIMAMCTAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contlnaed)
Erellt pivk grade (oo
e/ Frcorporarion of forward leokiagr fafarmmtion foamtimwed)

The Ciroup considers scenarics in range of 3-5 vears horizen (eonsistend with forecosts available From pebdic sounces),
beyand swhich the kg term svermges macroceonomic comdtions prevail. Extemally svailoble macreeconomes fordcasts
from lntematinal Monctary Fuped {5} anc Snisli Central Bank (SAMA are wsed for making ihe base cose forecas.
Far other soenarios, adjusbments ore masde to base cose fordcasss bassd on expernt judgement

[Mee basie came represents a mostlikely nwicome as published by exicrmal sorocs: The other scenasios reresent more
apgimistic and nwoes pessimisic salcomes,

M W rameemend ol B

The key inpuits inge the messerenent of FCL are the s strietore of the variabdes setaut below, These parameiers are
generally detived Trom mternally developed statistical models and other historical data, They are sdpusted 1 rellect
Tewrwnrd-looking nfornation as described above,

PTF estimiies one estimates an o certain date, which are culenksted, based on models and assessed using tools ilored (o
vafisie calegories of counterparics and. expesines, These siaflaticol modets are based oo inicreally complied dats
comprising bath quartiative and quelitative (aclos 11 a COUFLETPANY 4 eXposure migrles helween ralings classes,
then this will lead 1o a change in the estimate of the associased PD. PDs are estimated considering the contractual
msatisrities of exposures o estimated prepayment miles.

LA (5 thee magitude of the [&efy loss if there s default, The Group eatmates LG parameters hosed on thie hiatory
of recovery rtes of cluims apasnst defaulied countagurties. The LOD models consaler the recoverbzs and oosts incurred
i b process o arrive L the estimates

EALD represcints the expected expoessre i the event of s defmall. The Group derives ie EAD from the carrent expostire
tir the cowmnberporty and potemial changes s e current amount allswsd under the conbreset including amaortization, The
EAL ol a fineial nmset 8 655 pposs carying amsount.

The Sirap measares ECL consklering the visk of defaull over the maximuen contractunl peried (inclucling amy
borros er's extension aptians|, depending on exposune’s rating classification over which it 12 exposed 10 eredit Hsh.

Cialfane

The o in the ondinury course af lending setivities to 33ES hold collaienibs w8 aaourity © mitkgate credit fsk in the
fanns. These colloberals mostly welude vehickes o renl estate, The collaternls are held mainky agoingst SME leans ond
are nanaged agninst relevanl exposures ot theis net reallzable valuss. For fnanciad assets that aré credit mpaiced at tie
reponing peckod, guamtdatve information aboul the collaler) hekd s seauity is needed to the extent that sach collaieral
mitigaies credit risk,

I amount o collsseral held as secarity for loans that are credit inpaired as ar 31 December 2023 i SE 398 million
131 December 2022: 3537 million}

I Cremeernames v Comirme

In additien e the cxisting risk monagenent fmmewisk, dhe Group his estoblished o Munagement Commitice For
averight of [IFRS 9 impainnent process that includes representation from Finance, a5 well & the invalvement of subjoc
matler experis in the areas of meeihodolegy ceviews, dut soarcing, risk modelling, ond fwmulating jedgements with
Tﬁp-‘-:tl;l the aspects of sgnificant increase in oredit rish delerminution. macroesooRHic Dssmnptions o Torward
mking factins,

Ligredelity risk

Livuidity risk: t5 the risk that the Ciroup il encounder difficuliy i raising fuds o mees ecommitmenis associated with
finamelal instruments. Licuidity visk may resull fram an ivabilite te sell a financial asset guickly al an smsount ckose o
il Foir volue. The Greap monages [t lquidity risk by gnsuning thag hank facilities ane prailahle,
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L1 FINAMOLAL RISK MANAGEMENT |continued)

Ligutelity risk foanninmed)

Argrfvsiy af Bosciar Sl inies e remafiniig conteectval ot fes

Ihe table below summariagg the motunty profile of the Group's financial Habilities at the reporting dote based on
cantraciun| indiscounied repay ment abligations: T he contracteal malorities aof firancial linbilities ave been determined
hazed on the rentsining period at the reporfing date @ the comracioml maierin daie

FEiafidn Fiw i
E T 12 micities 5 o Taral
SR SR Ry iR
B Decemiber 2024
Acoounts payable, acenials and slicrs® 14,935,244 X006 593 1,254 80 1% 287 69T
Frormowings® 07,814,554 165,8 Lo, x50 1218855 455 4067 850

81.750,554 168,913,282 200,713 474, TIRS6)

I B by 2022
Accomms payabde, acenumls okl athers® TR Sl B2 HD ] - 13,542, 3%5
Rarmawings* ). 293 904 213,535,793 TR ALRST (el & 6T, 545

I 195468 219,578,004 3 EA0.E52 k2612934

* Aceried spevinl commission cxponse mal the reparting dute hos been incladed oz par of horrowings for the purpose
ol above disclpsnne,

Aselvdr o il srsets v \ahiliies nocording o ilen e e eipectid fo e recaverea or seiiled
The tabde sheaws ananalysis of fnanciol asseis and Habilities aceording woswhen thay ore expectsd (o be recoversd or
setiled:

Wirhim # L I o Mo fived
imgitles 12 panirha 5 penes iy Toviid
AR X8 AR R iR

St Decepber 20341
Uash and cash equivalems 01,9379 . - = 937978
Invesiment ai fale value theough OC] = - - il ] RiE BEQ
Islaende: finacing receivahles 127001 658 RS n16545  GUSHITA412 = 14180 545 610
Oither nsscts I58FLYS  RIARRS4S  G0.645.240 = e d0a 80
Fimanrial asseie 135730026 JMOE00000 SR 62 EED ROLI RS0 | M2 SRS 618
Aecounts povable, acenunls aml othees 19,234,566 301G, 592 1,254,864 - 13.5R8.02 8
Forrmwings G5 80,653 166,543 260 210,609,985 - B 540 T
Lease linbidities 1,527,001 485, 108 TL,910, 0143 - 17.523,542
CHher linhilites - 9442540 - 6.2%6 561 PRA90.501
Finnneial liabilities He, 058,310 IRAIGT,MIZ 224,775,540 2565061 SMASEEIS
Muturity gap 49,576,716 256303008 441,6H6,TIZ  (S363,TI0) Hd42,232.805

Cumulutive maturity gap F4R5T6, T HU5909.804  B47.506516 842 232R05

k1.4
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u FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {econtinsed)

Wirtiim 2 Frm Iia Wi fiered

oy 1. menihs 5 ey Ay Tl

R N AR A 5H

I Dyvemher 2522
Cash @l cash eguivalents SR | - - . LR RN
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Morabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
%1 December 2005

L1} FINANCIAL HRISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Specied commiision note G [coimfanedi

I he Cirawp is exposed to risks soocile] with the Msoadions in the levels of markel special commission mabes, The
tabde belony semmarizéa the Groug's expodwns o spectal conmdssion rabe riske. lscluded in the table are the Group's
assels arsl labilities of carrying amoonis, cotegarized by the earlier of contraciani repocing or mastenly dates. The
Cironap is expossd fo special comm ission rass risk &5 o resull el misiaiches oF gape o the smomis of assets and lishilities
thint reprice or micune i o given period. The Greap mannges this risk by matching the repricing of sasets and lobilities
Ihll.'luuﬁ ek muonagemend stradepics,
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Muorabahs Marina Financing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
31 December 2023

k11 FINANMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continusd)

Sprrctad conminission rale misk (Cordaaned)
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Fareign currency tisk is the risk fleal the valee of fnancial instruments will Mucloats due g changes m loreign éxchange
ribes, The Group is o subjest o Muctuations in Greign exchonpe mies moibe nommal cowse of its business as il does
ot have any significant fnoneind assels and Baldliies denominsted In Torcign curnency.

A1 COMMITMENTS AND CONTIGENCIES

Mgt 3 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, ibe Group do ned hove any significant commitments ol contingens
fialaliies.
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Muorabaha Marina Financing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

F{DI'ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM EMTS {Continued)
31 December 2023

K. 4 OFF BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTION

Diwring HE2, Group emiered o a Musharakah agreemeni amamiing s SR50 millon with one of the copdial manke
nstitution, As per the agreement, the Griup et 85 managing agent bn fduciany capacity. for e Mushgsakah smount,
i aecardigly the amonnt is not lscleded o the consolidated Tinancial sinlements amd are wrenbed ns off-balosce sheet
transacfion

3 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Mo events Tave ovemred subsoqienl wothe reponiing date and before the fssoance of these conselidated nancial
sastemerits which roguires sdjustment g, or dischosre, in thess comsolbdated Hnancial statensents.

34 RECLASSIFICAITON IN COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Cerain of the prior ycar amsmts bove been reclassified 1w eonform with the prescntation in the curent year, below are
the mginr reclassineation:

Avcount Awwinéd
Fram To AR
Cnrsol e sraement of comprehencnye fezomne
Cienersl anid sdm inistration expenses (i} Speciol commuaion income po e
Tnapairment kosses on lslumbe Midncing
ither meomse (1) recelvables, se 17395, 197
il Amortzsation of prepaid velicke insaranes relred (o |ara boans bas been peiied off with the insurance meome
Crirtn Tajarn costvmess,
i Recoveries sgains recelvables previvisly writien off has been netved off with the Impalnment lomes on 18amic

ﬁlk':mui.ng receivihles.
A5 AFPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consulidsted finasicial stalementy have heen upproved by the Bosrd of Dircctors on 27 Februany 2024
jeormesponding to 17 Sha'han 1445H),




